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PART 1
iTEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

Pike Electric (“Pike,” “we,” *us,” and “our™) is one of the largest providers of outsourced eleciric distribution and transmission
services in the United States. We perform engineering, design, maintenance, upgrade and construction of elt#:lric distribution
powerlines, sub-500 kilovolt (“kV") transmission powerlines and substations for electric utilities, cooperatives and municipalities. We
are also a recognized leader in storm restoration services. Our common stock is traded on the New York Stotk Exchange under the
symbol PEC,

We were founded by Floyd S. Pike in 1945 and were incorporated in North Carolina in 1968. On July 1, 2005, in cornection with
our initial public offering (“1PO™) we reincorporated in Delaware by merging Pike Holdings, Inc., our predegessor, with and into a
newly-created wholly-owned subsidiary, Pike Electric Corporation. We completed our IPO of ten million shares of common stock on
August 1, 2005. :

On September 1, 2008, we acquired substantially all of the assets of Shaw Energy Delivery Services, Ing. (“EDS”), formerly an
affiliate of The Shaw Group, for $24.25 million in cash, subject to a working capital adjustment, plus the asfumption of certain
operating liabilities. EDS provides engineering, design, procurement and construction management serviceg on distribution and
transmission powerlines and substations, and also performs maintenance and construction services on distriRution and transmission
powerlines and substations. Among other benefits, the acquisition provides us an opportunity to expand ousoperations to the West

Coast, Southwest, Pacific Northwest and Mid-Atlantic markets. For the twelve months ended August 31, 2407 EDS generated
approximately $108 million in revenues.

Industry Overview

The annual market for electric power in the United States is nearly $300 billion and electricity consumggion has grown at an
average compound annual growth rate of 2.1% from 1980 to 2007, according to the Energy Information Adinistration (“EIA™). The
industry is comprised of investor-owned utilities, municipal utilities, cooperatives, federally-owned utilities}independent power
producers and independent transmission companies with three distinct functions: generation, distribution angl transmission. The
electric distribution and transmission infrastructure is the critical network that connects power from generat@rs to residential,
commercial and industrial end users, Electric transmission refers to power lines through which electricity is gransmitted over long
distances at high voltages (over 230 kV) and the lower voltage lines that connect the high voltage transmissgn infrastructure to local
distribution networks, Electric distribution refers to the local municipal, cooperative or utility distribution ndtwork, including
associated substations, that provides electricity to end users over shorter distances. Within this electric ncugrk, there are over five
million miles of distribution lines and more than 600,000 miles of transmission lines. Approximately 85% of transmission line miles
carry less than 250 kV, and approximately one-half of these miles are in our geographical footprint.

Electric distribution and transmission infrastructure requires ongoing maintenance, upgrades and extengions to manage power line
congestion, avoid delivery failures and connect distribution lines to new end users. According to the EEI, eléclric utilities spent an
estimated $17 billion on electric distribution capital expenditures in 2007 and are anticipated to spend, on aferage, $14 billion
annually through 2015 on distribution investments, which is almost triple the size of projected transmission;nves_lmem. This
infrastructure further requires emergency repairs whenever unexpected power outages or damages occur. TRe required maintenance,
upgrades and extensions, as well as the emergency repairs, are performed by the ulility companies that owngthe relevant power lines
and by third-party service providers, such as our company, to which utilities, cooperatives and municipalitigs outsource some of their
needs. !

Industry Trends

Long-term demand for power line services is primarily driven by the continuous need to maintain and §pgrade the electric
distribution and transmission infrastructure. As a result, future demand for infrastructure services will be driven generally by increased
demand for electricity, increased outsourcing by utilities and the need to correct the inadequacy of the electﬁc distribution and
transmission infrastructure. :

Growth in Demand for Electricity and Need for Improved Infrastructure. Demand for electricily is a divect driver of spending on
electric distribution and transmission infrastructure. According to a 2008 EIA report, United States electricity consumption has
increased by approximately 73% since 1980 and is expected to further increase by approximately 40% by 2P30. This increasing
demand is being placed on an aging power grid. Based on these facts, we expect increased investment botl§to establish new
distribution and transmission infrastructure and to maintain and improve existing infrastructure, '
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The Energy Policy Act of 2005. Tha Energy Policy Act of 2005 was designed, among other things, to improve electric
transmission capacity and reliabilily and 1o encourage investment in the transmission infrastructure, The Act calls for the formation of
a self-regulating reliability organization, subject to oversight by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) (o create and
enforce minimum refiability standards, FERC has issued rules to create a more profitable situation for transmission system owners,
and it has approved incentive rates {o promote increased transmission construction and help ensure reliability in certain regions of the
country. The Act also facilitates effective competition by repealing the Public Utility Holding Company Act (“PUHCA”). We belicve
this repeal will spur investments from non-utility entities, which are likely to focus on reducing costs, while enabling utilities to focus
on their core competencies. Additionally. we believe that the repeal of PUHCA may lead to increased interest in owtsourcing solutions,
Over the long-term, we believe that our business will benefit from any increase in spending in the transmission infrastructure due to
the associated increases in maintenance. extension and upgrade of distribution and sub-500 kV transmission lines ~ our core business
services,

Increased Quisourcing of Infrastructire Services. Ulilities, cooperatives and municipalitics are continuously seeking ways to
improve cost efficiencies, In addition, utilities are facing an aging workforce. According to North American Eleciric Reliability
Corporation, one in three United States wility workers will be age 50 or older by 2010. Over the last decade, electric utilities and
cooperatives have increased their reliance on outsourcing the maintenance and improvement of their electric distribution and
transmission systems to third-party service providers. Given our size, our skilled workforce. our experienced operations management
and our existing equipment and truck flcet. we are well-positioned to provide these outsourcing services in a manner that is cost
efficient to our customers and attractive 1o our prospective customers.

Increased Power Generation and Alternate Energy Sources. Based on increased demand for electricity, power generation will
continue to be a focus for utilities. This focus will include traditional and renewable power resources. Qur acquisition of EDS will
expand our service offering 10 include enginecring, design and construction of the distribution, transmission and substation
requirements for solar and wind projects.

New Home Development. New home development has decreased in our markets. This decline has negatively impacted home
connections and certain underground distribution services. Given our size and geographical footprint we have realtocaled certain
employees 1o arcas with greater current demand. Even with this effort our headcount has declined with demand in these areas. The
turnaround in the demand for these services is impacted by mortgage and other financial institution difficulties. new and existing home
inveniories, home prices, intercst rates and overall political and economic conditions.

Competitive Strengths
We believe our significant competitive strengths are as follows:

» Company Branding. We are one of the largest service providers to electric utilities, cooperatives and municipalities in the
United States. We are also one of the few service providers of scale in our industry that operates under a single, welt-
recognized brand over a contiguous geographic area, providing us a distinct competitive advantage with both large and smnall
territory customers,

*  Outsourced Services-Based Busiress Model. We provide vilal services to electric utilities, cooperatives and municipalities,
which have increased their reliance on outsourcing the maintenance and improvement of their distribution and transmission
systems. Over 99% of our revenues are derived under master service arrangements, We derive less than 1% of our revenues
from fixed-price agreements relating to large-scale capital improvement projects.

«  Geographic Market. Qur service werritory includes the Southeastern and South-Central United States. Both overall and on a
state-by-state basis, our market has exhibited strong population growth and increases in electricity consumption, thereby
increasing demand for our services. Moreover, the contiguous nature of our transmission and distribution service territory
enables us o respond nimbly to our customers’ needs, particatarly in situaiions requiring rapid response, where we are able to
seamlessly transition crews and equipment within our terrilory. This agility also provides the added benefit of increased
operating efficiency by cnabling us Lo maximize the highest and best use of our crews and equipment within our indusiry
without significant barriers.

* Sterm Restoration Opportunities, Qur transmission and distribution market ircludes the Southeastern and South-Central United
States, generally the most affected arcas of the couniry when considering the impact of inclement weather, such as ice storms
and hurricancs, on the electric infrastructure. Of the competitors in our market, we believe we are the leading provider of
emergency services for storm restoration.




* Long-Standing Customer Relationships. We have a diverse, well-capitalized customer base that inclifles over 150 electric
companies throughout our service territory. We employ a customer-focused philosophy that has resulfed in long-standing
customer relationships. Our relationships with our top 15 customers average approximately 34 years.!

+ Major Investments in Fleet and Safety, We have made significant investments in our business. In addition to investing in our
fleet, substantially ail of which we own, we have invested in our employee safety and development pgograms, establishing
training and safety programs certified by the Department of Labor.

»  Experienced Management Team with Demonstrated Operational Excellence. Our strong managemen has led us to operational
excellence, as demonstrated by our continuing success in effectively growing our business, managing|our costs, supervising
our workforce and deploying our flect. All members of our senior operational management team havd been with us for over
20 years and most obtained significant operating experience prior lo being promoted to their current gositions.

«  Financial Position. Our strong cash flows have provided the opportunity to reduce our debt by $279.4 million since June 30,
2005. We are in a position Lo pursuc al! avenues of business growth, ‘

Business Strategy

We strive 10 be our customers’ service provider of choice and to expand our leadership position in the outsourced services sector
of the electric infrastructure industry, while continuing to increase our revenues and profitability. In order tsaccomplish these goals,
we are pursuing the following strategies: ‘

« Increased Penetration Within Our Existing Service Territory. We intend to continue to increase our ffenetration and market
share within our existing service territory by expanding our existing customer relationships, attracting new customers and
pursuing selective acquisitions. We believe our quality service, modern fleet, regional presence, storga restoration capabilities
and strong safety record will enable us to develop our business with both existing and prospective cu§tomers as they continue
to outsource their servicing needs. '

¢ Expand Our Service Territory and Service Offerings. We intend to continue {0 grow our business by feeking new opportunities
from our existing customers that have operations outside our current service territory or outsourcing geeds beyond our current
service offerings, capturing new customers in other geographic markets and pursuing selective acquisitions.

«  Continued Focus on Distribution and Sub-500 kV Transmission. We will continue to focus on the mgintenance, upgrade and
extension of electric distribution and sub-500 kV transmission power lines. By {ocusing on the distripution and sub-500 kV
transmission sector of the industry and providing high-quality services to our customers, we believe fhat we will be in a
position to capture a significant share of the expected increased amount of work in this market sectof,

¥
»  Capitalize on Favorable Long-Term Industry Trends, We believe that we are well positioned to bendfit from expected long-
term industry trends, which are described in more detail above under the heading “Industry Trends.”™y

*  Employer of choice for transmission and distribution line workers. We believe the demand for skillgd line workers will
increase dramatically over the next five to ten years. We will continue to focus on employee develogment and retention. This
effort includes periodic wage and benefits reviews, recruitment programs, advertising, new educatiogal programs and
continuously improving communications with mobile workforce. We have also initiated a leadership retirement program,
effective for fiscal 2009.

s Continued Focus on Operating Efficiency and Customer Service. We intend to use the scale and scoﬁe of our capabilitics to
achieve higher levels of operating efficiency and productivity while further enhancing our customer gervice. Additionatly, we
intend 1o use our modern fleet, repair and maintenance capabilities and skilled workforce to increase our cost competitiveness
so that we may profitably win new business, Development, implementation and deployment of new fechnologies will be a key
component of this effort.

s Continued Focus on Safety. We will continue to focus on safety through the use of safety programs, kraining, technology and
equipment. :

Our Services

We provide services to the electric power distribution and transmission market. We focus primarily onthe maintenance, upgrade
and extension of overhead and underground power lines, and secondarily on providing storm restoration scivices and various ancillary




services. We provide a breakdown of our revenues by type of service in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations - Services.”

Core Powerline Services. We began as a provider of distribution infrastruciure services, and these services continue to be our
primary revenue generator. Today, using over 5,800 pieces of motorized equipment, we provide overhead and underground
maintenance, upgrade and extension services in a 19-state region. Overhead services consist of the construction and repair of wire and
components in energized overhead eleciric distribution systems. Underground services range from simple residential installations,
directional boring. duct bank and manhole installation, 10 the construction of complete underground distribution facilities. We also
perform routine maintenance work, consisting of repairing or replacing damaged or defective components, inspecting distribution
systems for safety hazards and upgrading outdated or low-capacity infrastructure.

In addition, we offer maintenance, upgrade and extension services for transmission lines with voltages of up to and including 230
kV and perform energized maintenance work tor voltages up to 500 kV. These applications are predominantly singte-pole and H-
frame structures utilizing wood, concrete or steel poles. Given the current load on regional electricity grids. our ability to perform
encrgized maintenance work is a significant competitive advantage because the work can be performed without interrupting the
electric network,

Our ancillary services include the construction of power substations and the installation of street lighting and fiber optic lines to
meet the needs of certain of our distribution customers, While we do not actively pursuc these ancillary scrvices as stand-alone
services, they add significant value for tur customers who prefer to utilize a single electric distribution and transmission infrastructure
service provider. Qur various ancillary services have generated less than 5% of our 10tal revenue for cach year during the past five
years and have been decreasing as a percentage of revenue during that time.

Storni Restoration Services. Storm restoration involves the repair or reconstruction of any part of a distribution or sub-500 kV
transmission network. including substations, power lines, utility poles or other components, damaged during snow, ice or wind storms,
Nash floods. hurricanes, tornados or other natural disasters. We have earned a reputation as a storm restoration leader in the Southeast
and South-Central United States due to our ability to rapidly mobilize the necessary employees and equipment while maintaining a
functional force for our unaffected custemers. In crisis situations, we have deployed over 2,000 employees within 24 hours to respond
to our customers’ emergency nceds. We maintain a dedicated 24-hour Storm Center that acts as the single hub of command. While
current master service arrangement (“MSA”) customers get priorily services. we also perform these services outside our normal
geographic service area and to utilities and cooperatives not under MSA arrangements.

Storm restoration services do not require that we keep a dedicated tcam on call. Rather, we are able to shift crews performing core
powerline services [or our customers in unaffected areas to those areas alfected by severe storms. Consequently, we are better able to
manage our workforce and respond quickly to storm-atfected areas, especially given our contiguous geographic market. Upon
completion of the storm work, our crews return to those customers in unatfected areas and complete the deferred work. This method
of staffing storm crews has proven both cost-efficient and effective. Our core powerline revenues decline as storm restoration
revenues increase.

Our storm restoration services provide us with opportunities to attract new customers for our core electric distribution and
transmission infrastructure services and we have been successful in acquiring new customers after providing storm restoration services
to them. Qur storm revenues vary significantly from year-to-year as shown in the table below:

Storm Revenues
Fiscal Storm Total as n Percentage of
Year Revenues Rewenues Total Revenues

‘ {In millions)
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The following table sets forth certain information related o selected significant storm mobilizationg in recent years;

Selected Storm Mohilizations

Approximate ‘

Number of
Employees | Restoration
Storm (States Affected) Date Mbobhilized Period

As illustrated in the tables above, our storm restoration services are very volatile. At the peak of our restoration activity, we have
dedicated more than 3,000 field, supervisory and support staff to storm restoration services. We cannot accufately predict the
occurrence or magnitude of future storm restoration revenues and therefore, rely on our core powerline busigess and revenues for our
day-to-day profitability.

| Customers :
| i
We have focused on developing strong, long-term relationships with major electric utilities, cooperativ ts and municipalities. We
have a diverse, well-capitalized customer base that includes over 150 electric companics throughout our sertice territory. We have
employed a customer-focused philosophy that has resulted in customer loyally, as exemplified by our 62-ye3r relationship with our
| first customer, Duke Energy. Our relationships with our top 15 customers average approximately 34 years. We preserve these
| relationships by providing top-quality service and modern equipment. '

Our top ten customers accounted for approximately 55.5%, 47.8% and 56.1% of our revenues during figcal 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Duke Energy was our only customer that represented greater than 10% of our revenues during that time frame, with
19.9%, 15.6%, and 14.7% for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Given the composition of the utilitigs, cooperatives and
municipalities in our geographical market, we expect that a substantial portion of our total revenues will coflinue lo be derived from a
limited group of customers.

Types of Service Arrangements

Over 99% of our services are provided under MSAs that cover maintenance, upgrade and extension services, as well as new
construction. Work under these arrangements is typically billed based on either hourly usage of labor and eﬁsipmenl or unit of work,
For the year ended June 30, 2008, approximately 62% of our revenues were generated from hourly arrangements, while approximately
37% were generated from unit-based arrangements. Hourly arrangements involve billing for actual producgve hours spent on a
particular job. The unit-based arrangements involve billing for actual units completed (poles, cross arms, sgecific length of line, etc.)
based on prices defined in the customers’ MSAs. We derive less than 1 % of our revenues from fixed-pricejagreements relating to
large-scale capital improvements. Initial arrangement awards are usually made on a competitive bid basts; Hpwever, extensions are
often completed on a negotiated basis. As a result of our track record of quality work and services, a majorfty of our arrangements are
renewed at or before the expiration of their terms. ‘

The terms of our service arrangements arc typically between one to three years for cooperatives and municipalities and three o
five years for investor-owned utilities, with periodic pricing reviews. Duc to the nature of our MSAs, in magy instances our cuslomers
are not commilted to minimum volumes of services, but rather we are cominitted to perform the specific segvices covered by the
MSAs if and to the extent requested by the customer. The customer is, however, obligated to obtain these sdrvices from us if they are

5




not performed by the customer’s employees. Therefore, there can be no assurance as to the customer’s requirements during a
particular period or that such estimates at any poiat in time are predictive of future revenues. Most of our arrangements, including
MSAs. may be terminated by our customers on short notice. Because the majority of our customers are well-capitalized. investment
grade-rated electric utilities or cooperatives, we have experienced minimal bad debts historically.

Seasonality

Because our services are performed outdoors, our results of operations can be subject to seasonal variations due to weather
conditions. These scasonal variations affect both our core powerling and storm restoration services. Extended periods of rain affect
the deployment of our core powerline ciews, particularly with respect to underground work. During the winter months. demand for
core powerline work is generally lower due (o inclement weather, In addition, demand for core powerline work generally increases
during the spring months due to improved weather conditions and is typically the highest during the summer due to better weather
conditions. Due 1o the unpredictable nature of storms, the level of our storm restoration revenues fluctuates from period o period.

Proprietary Rights

We nave obtained U.S. federal rademark registration for our “PIKE™ word mark and our “PIKE” logo mark. We own
registrations for three other rademarks. We have invested substantial time. effort and capital in establishing the Pike name and believe
that our trademarks are a valuable part of our business.

Training, Quality Assurance and Safety

Performance ol our services requires the use of heavy equipment and exposure to potentially dangerous conditions. Our safety
record reflects our commitment to operating sately and prudently. As employee safely is a top corporate priority, we have developed
an extensive safety and training program, utilizing physical training facilities and on-line courses. Our lineman training program. an
accredited four-year program, has grown to be one of the largest non-union power line training programs in the United States. We
have received recognition of excellence from the North Carelina Department of Labor for the results of our apprenticeship program, In
addition to on-the-job training, our Carcer Development Program and specialized training, we require our employees to attend
ongoing safety training programs. Qur ¢ontinued focus on safety and workforce developments has resulted in year-over-year
improvements in lost-time incidence rates in each of the last five fiscal years. These rates are caiculaied in accordance with the
methodologies preseribed by the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA™). We also conduct other mandatory
training programs covering a variely of areas. such as supervisor development and CPR/ First Aid Certification.

We consistently communicate our rules, regulations and training guidelines to our employees. These rules and regulations are
strictly enforced throughout the company. In addition, we maintain a safety incentive program that rewards employees for working
safely and minimizing injuries.

As is common in our industry, we r2gularly have been and will continue to be subject (o claims by employees, customers and
third parties for property damage and personal injuries.

Equipment

Our fleet, substantially all of which we own. consists of over 5.800 pieces of motorized equipment with an average age of
approximately five years (measured as ¢f June 2008) as compared to their average useful lives of 4 to 12 years. Our equipment
includes standardized trucks and trailers, support vehicles and specialty construction equipment, such as backhoes. excavators,
generators, boring machines, cranes. wire pullers and tensioners. The standardization of our trucks and trailers allows us to minimize
training. maintenance and parts costs, We believe that our vehicles generally are wetl maintained and adequate for current operations,

We service the majority of our fleet and are a tinal-stage manufacturer tor several configurations of our specialty vechicles. We
can butld components on-site, which reduces our reliance on our equipment suppliers.

Our maintenance function has the capability to operate 24 hours a day, both al our maintenance centers and in the field, and
provides high-quatity custom repair work and expedient service, in order 10 maintain a fleet poised for mobilization. Compared to our
competitors, we belicve that this helps us achieve a greater local presence, lower fuel costs and more efficient equipment maintenance.
We believe that our maintenance facilities are adequate for our current operations,

Employees

Al June 30, 2008, we employed approximately 5,400 full-time and part-time employees, of which approximately 4.600 were
revenue producing and approximately 800 were non-revenue producing. We offer our employees a competitive package of benefits
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including medical, dental, life and disability insurance, paid vacation and holidays, a 401(k) plan, leadership retirement program, and
safety and incentive bonuses. The level of benefits per employee varies and is based upon years of service, a$ well as levels of
seniority and other variables. i

Our employees are not currently unionized, and we believe that our relationship with our employecs is very good.
Risk Management and Insurance

We maintain insurance arrangements with coverage customary f(or companies of our type and size, inclufling general liability,
automotive and workers’ compensation. We are partially self-insured under our major policies, and our insm@nce does not cover all
types or amounts of liabilities. Under our general liability, automotive and individual workers’ compensatiorj arrangements, we are
generally liable for up to $1.0 million per occurrence (and up to $0.5 million per claim prior to 2004). We algo maintain insurance for
health insurance claims exceeding $0.35 million per person on an annual basis. We are not required to, and o not, specifically set
aside funds for our self-insurance programs. At any given time, we are subject to multiple workers’ compengtion and personal injury
and other employee-related claims. Losses are accrued based on estimales of the ultimate liability for claimsgeported and an estimate
of claims incurred but not reported with assistance from a third-party actuary. We maintain accruals based o known facts and
historical trends. '

}

In the ordinary course of business, we are required by certain customers to post surely or performance bnds in connection with
services that we provide to them. As of June 30, 2008, we have approximately $34.6 million in surety bondg§outstanding. We have
never had to reimburse any of our sureties for expenses or outlays incurred under a performance or paymenti;ond.

i
Competition i

We face significant competition from subsidiaries or divisions of four national companies, approximate& eight regional
companies and numerous small owner-operated private companies. Qur competitors vary in size, geographiq scope and areas of
expertise. We also face competition from the in-house service organizations of our existing and prospective gustomers, some of which
employ personnel who perform some of the same types of services we provide. ;

We belicve that the principal competitive factors in the cnd markets in which we opcrate are:
e reputation and relationships with customers;
¢ history of service execution (for example, safety record, cost control, timing and experience);

e geographic presence and breadth of service offerings;

. v

®  price;

e investment in fleet and equipment, including technologicat capabilities; i
+ storm restoration abilities and reputation;

s experience of management team and crews, and

+ the availability of qualified and/or licensed personnel.

We believe that we have a favorable competitive position in our markets due in large part to our strong pperating history,
reputation and relationships with our customers. Small third-party service providers pose a smaller threat to s than national
competitors because they are frequently unable to compete for larger, blanket service agreements to providesystem-wide coverage,
However, some of our competitors are larger, have greater resources and are able to offer a broader range offservices (such as services
to the telecommunications industry) or offer services in a broader geographic territory. In addition, certain f our competitors may
have lower overhead cost structures and may, therefore, be able to provide their services at lower rates than Wwe can. Furthermore, if
employees leave and become our competitors, we may lose some of our existing customers that have formed relationships with those
former employees. Compelitive factors may require us Lo take measures, such as price reductions, in the futgre that could reduce our
profitability. There are few significant barriers to entry into our industry and, as a result, any organization with adequate financial
resources and access to qualified staff may become a competitor.




Government Regulation

Our operations are subject to various federal. state and local laws and regulations including licensing requirements, building and
clectrical codes, permitting and inspection requirements applicable to construction projects, regulations relating to worker safety and
health, including those in respect of OSHA and regulations relating to environmental protection.

We believe that we are in material compliance with applicabie regulatory requirements and have all material licenses required to
conduct our operations, Qur failure to comply with applicable regulations could result in substantial fines and/or revocation of our
operating hicenses. Many siate and loc. regulations poverning electrical consiruction require permits and licenses to be held by
individuals who typically have passed an examination or met other requirements. We have a regulatory compliance group that
monitors our compliance with applicable regulations,

Environmental Matters

Our facilities and operations are subject to a variety of environmental laws and regulations which govern, among other things, the
use, storage and disposal of solid and hazardous wastes, the discharge of pollutants into the air, land and water, and the cleanup of
contamination, In connection with our truck fueling, maintcnance, repair, washing and final-stage manufacturing operations, we usc
regulated substances such as gasoline, diese! and oil. and generaie small quantities of regulated waste such as used oil. antifrecze,
paint and car batteries. Some of our propertics contain, or previously contained, aboveground or underground storage tanks, fuel
dispensers, and/or solvent-containing parts washers. In the event we cause, or we or our predecessors have caused, a reiease of
hazardous substances or other environmental damage, whether at our sites, sites where we perform our services, or other locations
such as off-site disposal locations or adjacent properties, we could incur liabilities arising out of such releases or environmental
damage. Although we have incurred ip (he past, and will incur in the fulure, costs to maintain environmental compliance and/for to
address environmental issues, such costs have not. and are not expected to, have a material adverse effect on our resulls of operations,
cash flows or financial condition.

Available Information

Qur website address is www.pike.com. You may obtain free copies of our annual report on Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q and our current reports on Form 8-K, any amendments to such reports, and filings under Sections 13 and 16 of the
Securitics Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, through our websitc under the heading “Investor Relations” or through the website of
the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™) (www.sec.gov). In addition, our Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of
Conduct and Ethics, and the charters of our Audit Commitiee, Compensation Committee and Nominating and Governance Commiitee
are posted on our website in the Invesior Relations section under the heading “Corporate Governance.” We intend to disclose on our
website any amendments or waivers to our Code of Ethics and Business Conduct that are required to be disclosed pursuant to
Ttlem 5.05 of Form 8-K, These reporis are available on our website as soon as reasonably practicable afier they are electronically filed
with, or furnished to, the SEC. The public may read and copy any materials filed by us with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference
Room at 100 F Street, NE. Washington, DC 20549, The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room
by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Qur business is subject to a variety of risks, including the risks described below. The risks and uncertainties described below arce
not the only ones facing our company. Additional risks and uncertainties not known to us or not described below may also impair our
business operations. If any of the following risks actually occur. our business, financial condition and results of operations could bhe
harmed and we may not be able to achieve our goals. This Annual Report on Form 10-K also includes statements reflecting
assumptions, expectations. projections, intentions, or beliefs about future events that are intended as “forward-looking statements™
under the Private Securitics Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1993 and Scction 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and should be read in conjunction with the section entitied “Forward-Looking Statements, ™

We derive a significant portion af our revendes from a small group of customers. The loss of or a significant decrease in services
to one or more of these customers could negativelv impact our business and results of operations. Our customer base is highly
concentrated. Our top ten customers ccounted for approximately 55.5%, 47.8% and 56.1% of our revenues for tiscal 2008, 2007 and
2006, respectively, Duke Energy was our only cusiomer that represented greater than 10% of our revenues during that time frame,
with 19.9%. 15.6%, and 14.7% for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Given the composition of the uiilities, cooperatives and
municipalities in our geographic market, we expect a substantial portion of our revenues will continue 10 be derived from a limited
group of customers. We may not be able to maintain our relationships with these customers. and the 1oss of, or substantial reduction of
our sales o, any of our major customers could materially and adversely affect our business. financial condition and results of
operations.



Qur customers often have no obligation (o assign work to us, and many of our arrangements may be terminated on short notice.
As a resull, we are at risk of losing significant business on short notice. Most of our customers assign work (g us under MSAs. Under
these arrangements, our customers generally have no obligation to assign work (o us and do not guaraniee sefvice volumes, Most of
our customer arrangements, including our MSAs, may be terminated by our customets on short notice. In addition, many of our
customer arrangements, including our MSAs, are open Lo compeltitive bidding at the expiration of their terms As a result, we may be
displaced on these arrangements by competitors from time Lo time. Our business and results of operalions cofild be materially and
adversely affected if our customers do not assign work to us or if they cancel a number of significan! arrangaments and we cannot
replace them with similar work.

Our storm restoration services are highly volatile and unpredictable, which could result in substantial variations in, and
uncertainties regarding, the levels of our financial results from period to period. Revenues derived from ourjsierm restoration services
are highly volatile and uncertain due to the unpredictable nature of weather-related events. Qur annual stornd restoration revenues
have ranged from a low of $43.0 million to a high of $185.3 million during the five fiscal years ended June 3D, 2008. During fiscal
2006 and 2005, we experienced the largest storm restoration events of our history as several significant hurritanes impacted the Gulf
Coast and Florida. Our storm restoration revenues for fiscal 2006 and 2005 are not indicative of the revenueg that we typically
generate in any period or can be expected to generate in any future period. Our historical results of operation$ have varied between
periods due to the volatility of our storm restoration revenues. The levels of our future revenues and net incoine may be subject to
significant variations and uncertainties from period to period due to the volatility of our storm restoration regenues. In addition, our
storm restoration revenues are offset in part by declines in our core powerline services because we staff SlOI‘if] restoration
mobilizations in large part by diverting resources from our core powerline services. f

1’
H

Our business is subject to numerous hazards that could subject us to substantial monetary and other liapilities. If accidents occur,
they could materially and adversely affect our business and results of operations. Our business is subject to gumerous hazards,
including electrocutions, fires, natural gas explosions, mechanical failures, weather-related incidents, ranspqrtation accidents and
damage to utilized equipment. These hazards can cause personal injury and loss of life, severe damage (o or dlestruction of property
and equipment and other consequential damages and could lead (o suspension of operations, large damage cgims and, in extreme
cases, criminal liability.

Our safety record is an important consideration for our customers. If serious accidents or fatalities occud we may be ineligible to
bid on certain work, and existing service arrangements could be terminated. In addition, if our safety record fwas to deteriorate, our
ability to bid on certain work could be adversely impacted. Further, regulatory changes implemented by OSHA could impose
additional costs on us. Adverse experience with hazards and claims could have a negative effect on our repufation with our exisling or
potential new customers and our prospects for future work. i

i

Our current insurance coverage may not be adequate, and we may not be able to obtain insurance at agceptable rates, or at all.
We are partially self-insured for our major risks, and our insurance does not cover all types or amounts of li:{bilities. Our insurance
policies for individual workers’ compensation and vehicle and general liability are subject to substantial deductibles of $1.0
million per occurrence. We are not required to, and do not, specifically set aside funds for our self-insurancdprograms. At any given
time, we are subject to multiple workers’ compensation and personal injury claims. Our insurance policies fay aot be adequate to
protect us from liabilities that we incur in our business. .

In addition, due to a variety of factors such as increases in claims and projected increases in medical co§ts and wages, insurance
carriers may be unwilling to provide the current levels of coverage without a significant increase in collaters requircments Lo cover
our deductible obligations. Furthermore, our insurance premiums may increase in the future and we may nogbe able to obtain similar

levels of insurance on reasonable terms, or at all. Any such inadequacy of, or inability to obtain, insurance chverage at acceptable
rates, or at all, could have a matcrial adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operaons.

Fuel costs could materially and adversely affect our operating results. Fuel costs, which have been at hjstorically high levels for
the past three years, and have continued to rise year over year, constitute a portion of our operating cxpensedFuel prices and supplies
are influenced by a variety of international, political and economic circumstances. In addition, weather and gther unpredictable events
may significantly affect fuel prices and supplies. These or other factors could result in higher fuel prices which, in turn, would increase
our costs of doing business and lower our gross profit. Fuel and oil expenses were approximately 6.2% of ré¢venues for fiscal 2008,

3

Demand for some of our services is cyclical and vulnerable to industry and economic downturns, whick could materially and
adversely affect our business and results of operations. The demand for infrastructure services has been, and will likely continue to be,
cyclical in nature and vulnerable to general downturns in the U.S. economy. When the general level of econpmic activity deteriorates,
our customers may delay or cancel expansions, upgrades, maintenance and repairs to their systems, A number of other factors,
including the financial condition of the industry, could adversely affeci our customers and their ability or wllingness to fund capital
expenditures in the future. We are also dependent on the amount of work that our customers outsource. Durgng downturns in the
economy, our customers may determine to outsource less work resuliing in decreased demand for our scrvid;es. Furthermore, the

9




historical trend toward outsourcing of iafrastructure services may not continue as we expect. In addition, consolidation, competition or
capital constraints int the cleciric power industry may result in reduced spending by, or the loss of, one or more of our customers.
These Mtuctuations in demand for our services could materially and adversely affect our business, tinancial condition and results of
operations, particularly during economic downturns, Economic downiurns may also adversely affect the pricing of our services,

Failure to mainiain effective internal conirel over financial reporting could have a material adverse effect on onr business,
operating results and stock price. According 10 requirements of Scction 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the related rules
of the SEC, we must assess our ability to maintain effective internal controls over financial reporting. Il we are unable to maintain
adequate internal controls, our business and operating results could be harmed. If our management or our independent registered
public accounting firm were to concludz in their reports that our internal control over financial reporting was not effective, investors
could lose confidence in our reported financial information and the trading price of our stock could drop significantly.

To be successful, we need (o altract and retain qualified personnel, and any inability to do so would adverselv affect our business.
QOur ability to provide high-quality services on a timely basis requires an adequate supply of skilled linemen and managers.
Accordingly, our ability to increase our productivity and profitability will be limited by our ability to employ, train and retain skilled
personnel necessary to meet our requirements. We may not be able (o maintain an adequate skilled labor force necessary to operate
efficiently. Our labor expenses may also increase as a result of a shortage in the supply of skilled personnel, or we may have o curtail
our planned internal growth as a result of labor shorlages. We may also spend considerable resources training employees who may
then be hired by our competitors, forcing us to spend additional funds 1o attract personnel! to fill those positions. If we are unable 1o
hire and retain qualitied personnel in the future, there could be a material adverse effect on our business, finaacial condition and
resulis of operations.

In addilion, our employees might leave our company and become our competitors. If this happens, we may lose some of our
existing clients that have formed relationships with these former employees. In addition, we may lose future clicnts 1o a former
employee as a competitor. In either event, there could be a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

We are dependent on our senior management and other key personnel, the loss of which could have a material adverse effect on
our business. Our operations, including our customer relationships, are dependent on the continued efforts of our senior management
and other key personnel including, in perticular, our chief executive officer, J. Eric Pike. Although we have entered into or intend to
enter into employment agreements with our chicf executive officer and certain other key cmployees, we cannot be certain that any
individual will continue in such capacitv for any particular period of time. We do not maintain key person life insurance policies on
any of our employees. The loss of any member of our senior management or other key personnel. or the inability 1o hire and retain
qualified management and other key personnel, could have a material adverse effect on our business, tinancial condition and resulis of
operations.

A continued slowdown in the housing market conld negatively affect our revenues from distribution work, Because a portion of
our distribution revenue is related to new home construction, we may face reductions in our distribution business when residential
housing starts slow. Historically, during such situations, we have generally seen customers shift spending to other projects. such as
upgrades to the power networks and projecis related to new apartment buildings. However, depending on the severity and duration of
the dowaturn. we could be unable to fully replace lost revenues, which could cause a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Cur industry is highly competitive and we may be unable to compete effectively, retain our customers or win new custonters,
which could result in reduced profitability and loss of market share. We face intense competition irom subsidiarics or divisions of
four national companies, approximately eight regional companies and numerous small, owner-operated private companies. We also
face competition from the in-house service organizations of our existing or prospective customers, some of which employ personnel
who perform some of the same types of services we provide. We compete primarily on the basis of our reputation and relationships
with customers, safety and execution record, geographic presence and the breadth of service offerings, pricing and the availability of
qualified personnel. Certain of our competitors may have lower cost structures and may, therefore, be able o provide their services at
lower rates than we can provide. Many of our current and potential competitors, especially our competitors with national scope, also
may have signilicantly greater financial, technical and marketing resources than we do. In addition, our compelitors may succeed in
developing the expertise, experience and resources to compele successtully and in markeling and selling new services better than we
can. Furthcrmore, our existing or prospective customers may not continue to outsource services in the future or we may not be able to
retain our existing customers or win new customers. The loss of existing customers to our competitors or the failure to win new
customers could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operaiions.

We may be unsuccessful at acquiring companies or at integrating companies that we gequire, and as a result. we may not achieve
the expected benefits and our profitabiliv could materially suffer. One of our growth strategics is to consider acquisitions of additional
electrical distribution and transmission services providers. both within and outside of our current service lerritory, when attractive
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opportunities arise. We expect to face competilion for acquisition candidates, which may limit the number ofacquisition opportunities
and may lead to higher acquisilion prices. We may not be able (o identify, acquire or profitably manage addigonal businesses or to
integrate successfully any acquired businesses without substantial costs, delays or other operational or financ§al probicms. Further,
acquisitions involve a number of special risks, including failure of the acquired business to achieve expectedfresults, diversion of
management’s atteation, failure Lo retain key personnel of the acquired business and risks associated with unjnticipated events or
liabilities, some or all of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and {esults of operations. In
addition, we may not be able to obtain the necessary acquisition financing or we may have to increase our indebtedness in order to
finance an acquisition. If we finance acquisitions by issuing convertible debt or equily securities, our existing stockholders may be
diluted, which could adversely affect the market price of our stock. Our future business, financial condition and results of operations
could suffer if we fail to implement successfully our acquisition strategy. i

§

We acquired substantially all of the assets of Shaw Energy Delivery Services, Inc. on September 1, 2008 and this acquisition
could have a negative effect on our business and results of operations. On September 1, 2008, we acquired gubstantially all of the
assets of EDS, formerly an affiliate of The Shaw Group, pursuant to an asset purchase agreement executed of June 18, 2008, amended
on August 14, 2008. The acquired assets and assumed liabilities could weaken our financial results, impose gaternal control issues and
produce other unforeseen negative consequences on our existing business. We also had some customer overlpp prior to the purchase.
If any of the customers in common were to reduce the volume of work with vs to reduce vendor concentratign, such decreases could
adversely impact our revenues and profilability. We have incurred transactional costs related to the acquml n and we may not
realize all anticipated synergies. !

We have incurred indebtedness under a senior credit facility, which may restrict our business and operdtions, and restrict our
Juture access to sufficient funding to finance desired growth. As of June 30, 2008, we had owtstanding indeb#dness of approximately
$140.5 mitlion and had availability of $66.4 million under the $90.0 million revolving portion of our senior ?edil facility (after giving
effect to the outstanding standby letters of credit of $23.6 million). Including the impact of active interest rafe swaps, a hypothetical
change in the interest rate of 50 basis points on our indebtedness as of June 30, 2008 would change annual cash intcrest expense by
approximately $0.2 million. i

We typically dedicate a portion of our cash flow to debt service. If we do not ultimately have sufficient rarnings 10 service our
debt, which matures in fiscal 2013, we would need to refinance all or part of our existing debt, sell assets, bggrow more money or sell
securities, which we may not be able to do on commercially reasonable terms or at all, ;

All of our outstanding indebtedness consists of a senior credit facility with a group of financial institutigns sccured by
substantially all of our assets. The terms of the credit facility include customary events of default and covengats that limit us from
taking certain actions without obtaining the consent of the lenders. In addition, our credit facility requires us}o maintain certain
financial ratios and restricts our ability to incur additional indebtedness. These restrictions and covenants lingit our ability to respond to
changing business and economic conditions and may prevent us from engaging in transactions that might otgerwise be considered
beneficial to us, including strategic acquisitions. :

A breach of our senior credit facility, including any inability to comply with the required financial ratiog, could result in a default
under that credit facility. In the event of any default under our credit facility, the lenders thereunder would bé entitled to accelerate the
repayment of amounts outstanding, plus accrued and unpaid interest. Morcover, these lenders would have the option to terminate any
obligation to make further extensions of credit under our credit facility. In the event of a default under our cfedit facility, the lenders
thereunder could also proceed to foreclose against the assets securing such obligations. In the event of a foratlosure on all or
substantially all of our assets, we may not be able to continue to operate as a going concern.

our day-to-day operations. We are implementing a comprehensive [T solution that will allow for a seamlessjinterface

between functions such as accounting and finance, human resources, powerline operations, fleet managemeift and customer
relationships, Development and implementation of the I'T" solution will require substantial financial and pcrsbnnel resources, While the
IT solution is intended to improve and enhance our information systems, large scale implementation of ne rrL:nformauon systems
2xposes us to the risks of start up of the new system and integration of that system with our existing system$and processes, including
possible disruption of our financial reporting. Failure to properly implement the [T solution could result in sﬁbstanlial disruptions to
our business, including coordinating and processing our normal business activities, lesting and recording of gertain data necessary Lo
provide oversight over our disclosure controls and procedures and eftective internal controls over our finandial reporting, and other
unforeseen problems. i

We are in the process of implementing a company-wide information technology (“1T” ) solution which sfould temporarily disrupt

During the ordinary course of our business, we may become subject to lawsuits or indemnity claims, wiich could materially and
adversely affect our business and results of operations. We have in the past been, and may in the future be, hamed as a defendant in
lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings during the ordinary course of our business. These actions may geek, among other things,
compensation for alleged personal injury, workers’ compensation, employment discrimination, breach of cahtract, property damage,
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punitive damages, civil penalties or other losses, consequential damages or injunctive or declaratory relief. In addition, pursuant to our
service arrangements, we generally indzmnily our customers for claims related to the services we provide thereunder. Furthermore,
our services are integral to the operation and performance of the electric distribution and transmission infrastructure. As a result, we
may become subject to lawsuits or claiins for any failure of the systems that we work on, even if our services are not the cause for
such failures. In addition. we may incur civil and criminal liabilities to the extent that our services contributed to any property damage
or blackout. With respect to such lawsuits. claims, proceedings and indemnitics. we have and will accrue reserves in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. In the event that such actions or indemnities are ultimately resolved unfavorably at amounts
exceeding our accrued reserves, or at material amounts, the outcome could materially and adverscly affect our reputation, business and
results of operations. In addition, payments of significant amounts, even if reserved, could adverscly affect our liquidity position.

Our failure to comply with or the iupaosition of liability under, environmental laws and regulations could result in significant
costs. Our facilities and operations, including fueling and truck maintenance, repair, washing and final-stage manufacturing, are
subject to various environmental laws and regulations relating principally to the use, storage and dispnsal of solid and hazardous
wastcs and the discharge of pollutants into the air. waler and land. Violations of these requirements, or of any permits required for our
operations, could result in signilicant fines or penalties. We are also subject to laws and regulations that can imposc liability,
sometimes without regard to fault, for investigating or cleaning up contamination, as well as for damages to property or natural
resources and for personal injury arising out of such contamination. Such liabilitics may also be joint and several, meaning that we
could be held responsible for more than our share of the liability involved, or even the entire amount. The presence of environmental
contamination could also interfere with ongoing operations or adversely affect our ability 1o sell or lease our properties. In the event
we fail to obtain or comply with any permits required for such activities, or such activities cause any environmental damage, we could
incur significant liability. We have incurred costs in connection with environmental compliance, remediation and/or monitoring, and
we anticipate that we will continue to do so. Discovery of additional contamination for which we are responsible, the enactment of
new laws and regulations, or changes in how existing requirements are enforced, could require us to incur additional costs for
compliance or subject us (o unexpected liabilities.

Weather conditions can adversely affect our operations and. consequently, revenues. The electric infrastructure servicing
business is subject to seasonal variations, which may cause our operating results to vary significantly from period to period and could
catise the market price of onr stock to full. Due to the fact that a significant portion of our business is performed outdoors, our results
of operations are subject to seasonal vaiiations. These seasonal variations affect our core activities of maintaining, upgrading and
extending electrical distribution power lines and not only our storm restoration services. Sustained periods of rain, especially when
widespread throughout our service arca, can negatively affect our results of operations for a particular period. In addition, during
periods of El Nifo conditions, typically more raintall than average occurs over portions of the U.S, Gulf Coast and Florida, which
includes a significant portion of our service territory. Generally. during the winter months, demand for new work and maintenance
services may be lower due 1o reduced construction activity during inclement weather. As a result, operating results may vary
significantly from period to period. If our operating results fall below the public’s or analysts’ expectations in some tuture period or
periads. the market price of our commoa stock will likely fall in such period or periods.

Our results of operations could be adversely affected as a result of the impairment of goodwill or other intangibles. When we
acquire a business, we record an asset called “goodwill” equal to the excess amount we pay for the business, including liabilities
assumed, over the fair value of the tangible and intangible assels of the business we acquire. The Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No., 141, Business Combinations, which states that
we must identify and valtue intangible assets that we acquire in business combinations, such as customer arrangements, customer
relationships and non-compete agreements, that arise from contractual or other legal rights or that are capable of being separated or
divided from the acquired entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged. The fair value of identified imangible assets is

- based upon an estimatic of the future eccnomic benefits expected to result from ownership, which represents the amount at which the
- assets could be bought or seld in a current transaction between willing parties, that is, other than in a lorced or liquidation sate.

, The FASB issued SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, which provides that goodwill and other intangible assels
that have indefinite useful lives not be amortized, but instead must be tested at least annually for impairment, and intangible assets that
have finite useful lives should continue 10 be amortized over their useful lives. SFAS No. 142 also provides specific guidance for
testing goodwill and other non-amortized intangible assets for impairment. SFAS No. 142 requires management to make certain
estimates and assumptions to allocate goodwill 1o reporting units and Lo determine the fair value of reporting unit net assets and
liabilities, including, among other things, an assessment of market conditions, projected cash flows, investment rates. cost of capital
and growth rates. which could significantly impact the reporied value of goodwill and other intangible assets. Fair value is determined
using a combination of the discounted cash flow, market multiple and market capitalization valuation approaches. Absent any
impairment indicators, we perform our impairment tests annually during the fourth quarter,

We review our intangible assets with finite lives for impairment when events or changes in business conditions indicate the

carrying value of the asscts may not be recoverable, as required by SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets. An impairment of intangible assets with finite lives exists if the sum of the undiscounted estimated future cash




tflows expected is less than the carrying value of the assets. If this measurement indicates a possible |mpa1rmcnt we compare the
estimated fair value of the asset to the net book value to measure the impairment charge, if any,

We cannot predict the occurrence of certain future events that might adversely affect the reported value ¢f goodwill and other
intangible assets that totaled $134.5 million at June 30, 2008. Such events include strategic decisions made id response to economic
and competitive conditions, the impact of the economic environment on our customer base, material ncgalivichanges in our
relationships with material customers and other parties breaching their contractual obligations under non-comipete agreements. Future
impairments, if any, will be recognized as operating expenses.

The market price of our stock may be influenced by many factors, some of which are beyond our comro[. These factors include
the various risks described in this section as well as the following:

» the failure of securities analysts (o continue to cover our common stock or changes in financial estihates or recommendations
by analysts;

e announcements by us or our competitors of significant conlracts, acquisitions or capital commitments;
e changes in market valuation or earnings of our competitors;

e variations in quarterly operating resulis;

e availability of capital;

e general economic conditions;

e lerrorist acts;

e legislation;

* future sales of our common stock; and '

+ investor perception of us and the electric utility industry.

Additionally, factors that do not specifically relate to our company may also materially reduce the marl».gt price of our common
stock, regardless of cur operating performance,

e
Shares eligible for future sale may cause the market price of our common stock to drop significantly, even if our business is doing
well. The market price of our common stock could decline as a result of sales of a large number of shares of pur common stock in the
market or the perception that these sales could occur. These sales, or the possibility that these sales may occdr, also might make it
more difficult for us to sell equity securities in the future at a time and at a price that we deem appropriate. '

As of June 30, 2008, there were 33,183,468 shares of our common stock outstanding. Of this amount, If,883,546 shares of
common stock are freely tradeable without restriction or further registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, by persons
other than our affiliates within the meaning of Rule 144 under the Securities Act. !

Additionally, we have filed a “shelf’ registration statement with the SEC pursuant to which Lindsay Goldberg and its affiliates
(“LGB™) may sell up to 8,000,000 shares, or approximately 25%, of our common stock at any time in one o more offerings. The
registration statement was declared effective by the SEC on September 20, 2006. The offer or sale of all or g portion of such shares
may have an adverse effect on the market price of our common stock. We are required to pay the expenses associated with such
offerings. :

4

Also, in the fulure, we may issue our securities in connection with investments and acquisitions. The anjount of our common
stock issued in connection with an investment or acquisition could constitute a material portion of our then qutstanding common stock,
and the issuance of such common stock would dilute the ownership percentage of our then existing stockhoBers,

The concentration of our capital stock will limit other stockholders ability 1o influence corporate matiess. LGB owns
approximately 40% of the total voting power of our outstanding shares of common stock. In addition, J. Erid Pike, our Chairman, CEO
and President, has the ability to control approximately §% of the total voting power of our outstanding shargs of common stock. LGB
and Mr. Pike also are parties to an agreement whereby LGB has agreed to vote its shares in favor of Mr. Pik being a director of the
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Company subject (o certain conditions. As a result, LGB and Mr. Pike, together, have the ability to exert substantial influence or
actual control over the Company’s mar.agement and affairs and over most matters requiring action by the Company’s stockholders.
The interests of LGB or Mr. Pike, or their respective affiliates, may not coincide with the interests of the other holders of our common
stock. This concentration of ownership also may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control otherwise favored by
our other stockhotders and could depress the stock price,

Anti-takeover provisions of our charter and bylaws mav reduce the likelihood of any potential change of control or unsolicited
acquisition proposal that stockholders might consider favorable. The anti-takeover provisions of Delaware law create various
impediments to the ability of a third party to acquire control of us, even if a change in control would be beneficial o our existing
stockholders. Additionally, provisions of our charter and bylaws could deter, delay or prevent a third-parly from acquiring us, even if
doing so would benefit our stockholders. These provisions include: the authority of the board 1o issue preferred stock with terms as
the board may determine, the absence ¢f cumulative voting in the election of directors, limitations on who may call special meetings
of stockholders, and advance notice requirements for stockholder proposals.

Utilities focus on power generation may temporarily divert attention and capital away from maintenance projects we perforn.
As United States energy consumplion increases. utilities will commit additional capital to power generation projects. This capital
demand may cause certain distribution powerline maintenance projects to be deferred.

Bonding indemnification vequiremants may change on existing or new contrgcts. Customer requirements may increase our costs
or in some cases result in collateral agreements or other reductions of availability under our revolving credit agreement. In addition.
our surcty providers may decline to modify current bonds or issue new bonds based on their assessment of risk. 1f we experienced a
disruption in bonding availability, we may be unable (o bid certain projects.

Our financial results are based upon estimates and assumptions that may differ from actual results. In preparing our
consalidated tinancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, scveral estimaies
and assumptions are used by manazgement in determining the reported amounts of assets and liabilitics, revenues and expenses
recognized during the periods presented and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities known (o exist as of the date of the
financial statements. These estimates and assumptions must be made because certain information that is used in the preparation of our
financial statements is dependent on fuiure events. cannot be calculated with a high degree of precision from data available or is not
capable of being readily calculated based on generally accepted methodologies. In some cases, these esitmates are particularly difficull
to determine and we must cxercise significant judgment. Estimates are primarily used in our assessment of the allowance for doubtiul
accounts, valuation of inventory, useful lives and salvage values of property and equipment, fair value assumptions in analyzing
goodwill and long-lived assel impairments, sclf-insured claims liabilitics, forteiture estimates relating to stock-based compensation,
revenue recognition and provision for income taxes. Actual results for all estimates could differ materially from the estimates and
assumptions that we use, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations,

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Nonc.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our headquarters and primary fleet facility are located in Mount Airy, North Carolina. As of June 30, 2008, we owned 13
facilities and leased 35 propertics throughout our service territory. Most of our properties are used as offices or for fleel operations.
We have pledged our owned properties as collateral under our credit facility. We continuously review our property needs and, as a
result. may consolidate or climinate ceriain facilities in the future. However, no specific future eliminations or consolidations have
been identified. We believe that our facilities are adequate Tor our current operations,

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are from time to time a party to various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of
business. These actions typically seek, 2mong other things, compensation for alleged personal injury. breach of contract and/or
property damages, punitive damages, civil penalties or other losses, or injunctive or declaratory relief. With respect to all such
lawsuits, claims and procecdings, we record reserves when it is probable a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be
reasonably estimated. We do not believe that any of these proceedings, separately or in the aggregate. would be expected to have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations, cash tlow or financial position,
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ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

There were no matters submitted to a vote of our security holders, through the solicitation of proxics or dtherwise, during the
fourth quarter of our fiscal ycar ended June 30, 2008. §

PART 11

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MA TTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES :

Market Information

Our common stock began trading on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE™) under the symbol “PEC” on July 27, 2005 at the
time of our IPO. The table below, for the periods indicated, presents the high and low sales prices per share of our common stock as
reported on the NYSE: f

i
Fiscal 2008 Fiscal 2007]

ESeQuitery;
Second Quarter

= s ;;:',:-,-_ £ # fl m’ R
Fourth Quarter

As of August 29, 2008, there were 62 stockholders of record of our common stock.
Dividend Policy

We have not declared or paid any cash dividends on our publicly traded common stock since our IPO. We currently intend to
continue 1o retain any future carnings to finance the growth, development and expansion of our business. Acgordingly, we do not
intend 1o dectare or pay any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future, The declaration, payment and amount of
future cash dividends, if any, will be at the discretion of our board of directors afler taking into account varichs factors. These factors
include our financial condition, results of operations, cash flows from operations, current and anticipated cagytal requirements and
expansion plans, any contractual restrictions, the income lax laws then in effect and the requirements of Deldware law.
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

None,

Performance Graph .

The following Performance Graph and related information shall not be deemed “soliciting material” of to be “filed” with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, nor shall such information be incorporated by reference into any futige filing under the

Securities Act of 1933 or Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amended, except io the extent that we sp?:iﬁcal!y incorporate it by

reference into such filing.

The following graph compares the percentage change in cumulative total stockholder return on our cofnmon stock since July 27,
2005, the date when our common stock was first publicly traded, with the cumulative total return ovgr the same period of the
companies included in the Standard & Poor’s 500 Index (“S&P 5007), the Russell 2000 Index (“Russcl§ 20007) and a peer group
selected by our management that includes four public companies within our industry. The peer groug is comprised of Dycom

Industries, Inc., Infrasource, Inc. (through December 31, 2007), MasTec, Inc. and Quanta Services, Inc.
§
The comparison assumes that the value of an investment in our common stock, the S&P 500, the Russell 2000 and the peer group

was $100 on July 27, 2005 and that all dividends were reinvested. We have not paid dividends on our comnjon stock. The stock price

performance reflected on the following graph is not necessarily indicative of future stock price performance,
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CUNULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Baseduponaninital investment of $100 on Juby 27, 1005
willhdividends reinvested
4250
)
1%
1] r - - r T T i T - T r \
AW Nl Howld a6 LV Neep i HOudb 3wl Nl BSepdl NDec Nduds N8
~——Fitr Bk Con.
== S0P 500F
----- Ruteed 00}
——Cystan Copotie lnduz {4 Stwcks) SOURCE: GEQRGESONING.
27-Jul-05 | 31-Dec-05 | 30-Jun-06 | 31-Dec-06 | 30-Jun-07 | 3i-Dec-07 | 30-Jun-08
Pike Electric Corp. $100 $116 $138 5117 5160 S120 $119
S&P 500® $100 $102 $105 5118 $126 5124 3110
Russell 2000 $100 $100 $109 §119 $126 $117 3106
Custom Composite Index -
(Tour stacks) 100 $108 $133 5142 $217 $182 $203

* The Custom Composite Index (four stocks) consists of: Dycom Industries Inc., Infrasource Services (through December 31,
2007), Mastec Inc and Quanta Services Inc.

»  Note: Starting price in 27-Jul-03 is based on PEC IPO price.

Copyright © 2008, Standard & Poor’s, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. All rights reserved.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The tables on the lollowing pages set forth selecled consolidated financial data of Pike Electric Corporation lor each of the years
in the five-year period ended June 30, 2008. The selected consolidated financial data as of June 30, 2008, 20¢7, 2006, 2005 and 2004
and for each of the five years in the period ended June 30, 2008, was derived from the audited consolidated f#hancial statements of
Pike Electric Corporation. Amounis for fiscal 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005 include the results of operations of ed Simpson, which was
acquired on July 1, 2004.

The consolidated financiat data should be read ir conjunction with “Item 7 - Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations™ and “Item 8 - Financial Statcments and Supplementary Data” included glsewhere herein,

Years I'nded June 30,,
2008 2007 2006 005 2004
amounts)

(in thousands, except per share

Slalement of Operations Data:

41 724 46,486 ’

: A6y iR20)
13 705 19,563 24,052

12.98% 11957 2324

Loss fromdiscontinued operauons net of
taxes (4) - —_ —

Basic eammgs (loss) from continuing i
0 crauons per common share ~

Income (loss) from continuing operations  $ 062 $ 057 & LIl ©I11) $

Diluted eamings (loss) from continuing }
0 erations per common share

lncorﬁe (s;)fmmconlmuing operations $ 0.60 $ 0.55 $ 1.07 $1 1) % (.69
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. As of June 30,
i 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

tin theusands)

Balance Sheet Data:

‘4 229119 o *V'v’af;—,! % ?740 - 2844524 TR

71.413 64.078 ] 305 69421 al ,49

Total assets 510,263 545 497 589 966 592 455 ' 287.006
[Toral et labilities 2 023 G 82307 38500

Total long-tenn liabilities
;Mandat’i’axﬁyqedeenmblé"’gffé’fé:‘f‘@r
Total stockholders’ equ ity (3)

218288 199 m

220 952

iCash dividend per share of commongiiicks. . o wflli e 4“.2.....

(1) Cost of operations for fiscal 2005 includes $21.1 million in deferred compensation charges reiated to our acquisition of Red
Simpson in July 2004,

(2) General and administrative expenses for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 includes stock compensation expense of approximately $2.7
millien, $1.9 million and $2.3 million, respectively, related to the adoption of SFAS 123R as of July 1, 2005. General and
administrative cxpenses for fiscal 2005 include: (i) $4.2 million of compensation cxpense for common stock options repurchased
lrom our management in connection with our December 2004 recapitalization. (ii) a $4.0 million charge for the termination of our
management agrecment with Lindsay Goldberg, and (iii) $2.6 million related to the purchase by members of Red Simpson’s
management of restricled shares of ~ommon stock in connection with the acquisition of Red Simpson, due 1o the acceleration of
deferred compensation benefits and the subsequent repurchase of a portion of that restricted stock in the December 2004
recapitalization,

(3) Interest expense primarily includes interest expense related to outstanding debt. Other interest expenses include (a) a
$14.0 million charge in fiscal 2005 for the redemption of preferred stock and (b) the write-off of unamortized deferred loan costs
of 50.8 million, $1.1 million, $3.2 millior and $6.7 million for fiscal 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. resulling from the
prepayment of debi,

(4) Loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes, represents losses from our industrial division, which ceased operations during the
year ended June 30, 2004.

(5) Total stockholders’ equity was etfected in fiscal 2006 by our IPO. completed on August 1. 2005, of ten million shares of common
slock, in which we received approximately $122.0 miliion in net proceeds. Total stockholders’ equily was effected in fiscal 2005
by our sale of common stock on July 1, 2004 for $71.0 million in connection with our acquisition of Red Simpson, which was
offset by our recapitalization in December 2004, pursuant to which we acquired shares of our common stock for a total purchase
price of $123.3 million.




ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS or
OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be reag in conjunction with our
historical consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto in ltem & “Financial Statements and Sipplementary Data.” The
discussion below contains forward-looking statements that are based upon our current expectations and are fubject lo uncertainty
and changes in circumstances. Actual resulls may differ materially from these etpectauons due to inaccuratg assumptions and known
or unknown risks and uncertainties, including those identified in “Risk Factors.” {

Overview ;

Pike Electric is one of the largest providers of outsourced electric distribution and transmission scrvicﬁ in the United States. We
perform engineering, design, maintenance, upgrade and construction of electric distribution powerlinesj sub-500 kilovolt (“kV™)
transmission powerlines and substations for electric utilities, cooperatives and municipalities, We are also a #ecognized leader in storm
restoration services.

Services

We monitor our revenues by the two categories of services we provide: core powerline and storm restorgtion. We use this
breakdown because core powerline services represent our ongoing service revenues, most of which are gcneined by our customers’
recurring maintenance needs. Storm restoration revenues represent additional revenue opportunities that depénd on weather
conditions.

Our powerline services are our core business because of the magnitude and stability of our revenues frofn these operations. These
powerline services have benefited from the industry trends described above. Although storm restoration servfces can generate
significant revenues, their unpredictability is demonstrated by comparing our revenues from those services ig the last five fiscal years
which have ranged from 8.9% to 25.5% of our total revenues, During fiscal 2006 and 2005, we experienced ghe largest storm
restoration ¢vents of our history as several significant hurricanes affected the Gulf Coast and Florida, Our slérm restoration revenue
for fiscal 2006 and 2005 are not indicative of the revenues that we typically generate in any period or can bej xpected 1o generate in
any future period. We cannot accurately predict the occurrence or magnitude of future storm restoration rev£ues.

The table below sets forth our revenues by category of service for the periods indicated:

Core Percentage Storm Percentage ‘
Fiscal Powerline of Total Restoration of Total 'rotal
Year Services Revenues Services Rewenues Re}‘enueq

(In miflions) (In miIlions) (In mllions)

Seasonality; Fluctuations of Results

Our services are performed outdoors, therefore our results of operations can be subject to seasonal variafions due to weather
conditions. These seasonal variations affect both our core powerline and storm restoration services. Exteaded periods of rain affect
the deployment of our core powerline crews, particularly with respect to underground work. During the wigter months, demand for
core powerline work is generally lower due to inclement weather. In addition, demand for core powerline wirk generally increases
during the spring months due to improved weather conditions and is typically the highest during the summeg due to better weather
conditions. Due to the unpredictable nature of storms, the level of our storm restoration revenues fluctuates from period to period.

Inflation
Due to relatively low levels of inflation experienced in recent years, inflation has not had a significant effect on our results.

However, we have experienced significant increases in the costs of tuel used to operate our vehicles and equipment during the last
three fiscal years.

19




Basis of Reporting

Revenues. We derive our revenues trom one reportable segment through two service categories — core powerline and storm
restoration. Our core powerline services consist of the maintenance. upgrade and extension of electric distribution and transmission
power lines. Qur storm restoration services involve the rapid deployment of our highly-trained crews and relaled equipment to restore
power on distribution and transmission systems during crisis sitnations, such as hurricanes or ice or wind storms.

Approximately 99% of our services, including substantially all of our core powerline and a majority of our storm restoration
scrvices. are provided under MSAs, which are based on a price per hour worked or a price per unit of service. Less than 1% of our
annual revenues are from fixed-price agreements. In addition, we do not derive significant revenues from large-scale capital projects.
which typically involve competitive bidding, fixed price agreements and substantial performance bond requirements. The mix of
hourly and per unit revenues changes during periods of high storm restoration services, as these services are all billed on an hourly
basis. We determine our revenue generated on an hourly basis based on actual labor and equipment time completed and on materials
billed to our customers. Revenue based on hours worked is recognized as hours are completed. We recognize revenue on unit-based
services as the units are completed.

Cost of Operations. Our cost of operations consists primarily of compensation and benefits to employees, insurance, fuel, rental,
operating and maintenance expenscs relating to vehicles and equipment, materials and parts and supplics. Qur cost of operations also
includes depreciation, primarily relating to our vehicles and heavy equipment.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses include costs not directly associated with
performing work for our customers. These cosis consist primarily of compensation and related benefits of management and
administrative personnel, facilities expenses, professional fees and administrative overhead.

Interest Expense and Other, Net. Interest expense and other, net primarily include interest expense and other nonoperating
expenses, In addition to cash interest expense, interest expense includes amortization ot deferred loan costs. deferred compensation
accretion and the write-off of unamortized deferred loan costs resulting from prepayments of debi.

Critical Accounting Policies

The discussion and analysis of our tinancial condition and results of operations is based on our consolidated financial statements,
which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP™). The
preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires the use of estimates, assumptions, judgments and subjective
interpretations of accounting principles that have an impact on the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses reported. We believe our
uses of estimates and underlying accounting assumptions adhere to GAAP and are consistently applied. Valuations based on
estimales are reviewed for reasonableness on a consistent basis. Actual results may differ materially from these estimates, We believe
the following to be our most important accounting policies, including those that use significant judgments and estimates in the
preparation of our consolidated financi! statements,

Revenue Recognition. Revenues [Tom service arrangements are recognized when services are performed. We recognize revenue
from hourly services based on actual lahor and equipment time completed and on materials billed to our customers. We recognize
revenue on unit-based services as the units are completed, and the price for each unit is determined under the service arrangement.

For unit-based services, any estimated loss is recognized when the actual costs to complete each unit exceed original estimates. Costs
typically include both direct labor and material costs and indirect costs related 1o performance. such as indirect labor, supplies, tools.
repairs and depreciation costs. We recognize the full amount of any estimated loss on these projects if estimated costs to complete the
remaining units for the project exceed the revenue to be received from such units. As of cach of the periods presented we did not have
a material amount of loss accruals,

Work completed and not billed represents service revenues earned under hourly arrangements and recognized in the period
performed but not billed until a subsequent period and work performed under certain unit service arrangements and not yet billed to
customers in accordance with specific contract terms regarding the timing of billing. In some instances. a portion of the (otal revenues
billed under the customer arrangement are held by the customer as a “retainage” until the job is complete, and we record these
amounts as work completed not billed.

Allowance for Doubiful Accounts. We provide an allowance for doubtful accounts that represents an estimate of uncoltectible
accounis receivable. The determination of the allowance includes certain judgments and estimates including our customers’
willingness or ability to pay and our ongoing relationship with the customer. In certain instances, primarily relating to storm
restoration work and other high-volume billing situations, billed amounts may differ from ultimately collected amounts, We
incorporale our histaricat experience with our customers into the estimation of the allowance lor doubtful accounts. These amounts
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are continuously monitored as additional information is obtained. Accounts receivable are due from customeds located within the
United States. Any material change in our customers’ business or cash flows would affect our ability to coll¢1 amounts due.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Immpairment of Long-Lived Assets. We capitalize property and eQLifmem as permitted or
required by applicable accounting standards, including replacements and improvements when costs incurred for those purposes extend
the useful life of the asset. We charge matntenance and repairs to expense as incurred. Depreciation on capifhl assets is computed
using the straight-line method and ranges from 3 to 39 years. Our management makes assumptions regarding future conditions in
determining estimated useful lives and potential salvage values. These assumptions impact the amount of degreciation expense
recognized in the period and any gain or loss once the asset is disposed. :

We review our long-lived assets for impairment when events or changes in business conditions indicate the carrying value of the
assets may not be recoverable, as required by SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Lpng-Lived Assets. An
impairment of assets classified as “held and used” exists if the sum of the undiscounted estimated future cashflows expected is less
than the carrying value of the assets. If this measurement indicates a possible impairment, we compare the egtimated fair value of the
asset to the net book value to measure the impairment charge, if any. If the criteria for classifying an asset as{‘held for sale” have
been met, we record the asset at the lower of carrying value or fair value, less estimaled selling costs. We alsh review the estimated
salvage values and useful lives of our equipment at least annually. :

Valuation of Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. In accordance with SFAS No. 141, Business Comliinations, we identify and
value intangible assets that we acquire in business combinations, such as customer arrangements, customer rdationships and non-
compete agreements, that arise from contractual or other legal rights or that are capable of being separated orflivided from the
acquired entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged. The fair value of identified intangible as$ets is based upon an
estimate of the future economic benefits expected to result from ownership, which represents the amount at which the assets could be
bought or sold in a current transaction between willing partics, that is, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. For customers with
whom we have an existing relationship prior to the date of the transaction, we utilize assumnptions that a marMetplace participant would
consider in estimating the fair value of customer relationships that an acquired entity had with our pre-existing customers in
accordance with EITF 02-17, Recognition of Customer Relationship Intangible Assets Acquired in a Busines§ Combination.

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, we test our goodwill for impajment annually or more
frequently if events or circumstances indicate impairment may exist. Examples of such events or circumstanges could include a
significant change in business climate or a loss of significant customers, We generally complete our annual 4nalysis of our reporting
unit on the first day of our fourth fiscal quarter. We apply a two-step fair value-based test to assess goodwilllfor impairment. The first
step compares the fair value of a reporting unit to its carrying amount, including goodwill. If the carrying angount of the reporting unit
exceeds its fair value, the second step is then performed. The secand siep compares the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s
goodwill to the fair value of the goodwill. If the fair value of the poodwill is less than the carrying amount, ag impairment loss would
be recorded in our income from operations. Intangible assets with definite lives arc amortized over their estifpated useful lives and are
also reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may dot be realizable. We have
no intangibles with indefinite lives other than goodwill, !

Our management makes certain estimates and assumptions in order to determine the fair value of net assgts and liabilities,
including, among other things, an assessment of market conditions, projected cash {lows, cost of capital and growth rates, which could
significantly impact the reported value of goodwill and other intangible assets. Estimating future cash flows fequires significant
judgment, and our projections may vary from cash flows eventually reatized. When necessary, we engage tHird-party specialists to
assist us with our valuations. The valuations employ a combination of present value techniques to measure fhir value, corroborated by
comparisons to estimated market multiples. These valuations are based on a discount rate determined by oug management to be
consistent with industry discount rates and the risks inherent in our current business model. t

We cannot predicl the occurrence of certain future events that might adversely affect the reported value : f goodwill and other
intangible assets that totaled $134.5 million at June 30, 2008. Such events include strategic decisions made g. response L0 economic
and competilive conditions, the impact of the economic environment on our customer base or material negatdve changes in our
relanonshlps with material customers, .

Insurance and Claims Accruals. In the ordinary course of our business, we are subject to individual w‘rkers compensation,
vehicle, general liability and health insurance claims for which we arc partially self-insured. We maintain cgmmercial insurance for
individual workers’ compensation and vehicle and general liability claims exceeding $1.0 million (30.5 mill{pn per claim prior to
2004). We also maintain commercial insurance for health insurance claims exceeding $0.35 million per pergon on an annual basis.
We determine the amount of our loss reserves and loss adjustment expenses for self-insured claims based ongthird-party actuarial
analyses prepared semi-annually that use both company-specific and industry data, as well as general econogpic information. Our
estimates for insurance loss exposures require us to monitor and evaluate our insurance claims throughout their life cycles. Using this
data and our assumptions about the emerging trends, we estimate the size of ultimate claims. Our most significant assumptions in
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forming our estimates include the trend in loss costs, the expected consistency with prior year claims of the frequency and severity of
claims incurred but not yet reported, changes in the timing of the reporting of losses from the loss date to the notification date, and
expected cosis (o settte unpaid claims. We also monitor the reasonableness of the judgments made in the prior year’s estimates and
adjust current year assumptions based on thal analysis,

While the final outcome of claims may vary from ¢stimates due (o the type and severity of the injury, costs of medical claims and
uncertaintics surrounding the litigation process, we belicve that none of these items, when finally resolved, will have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition or liquidity. However, should a number of these items occur in the same period, it could
have a material adverse cffect on the results of operations in a particular quarter or tiscal year.

Stock-Based Compensation. Effcctive July 1, 2005, we adopied SFAS No, 123 (revised 2004) (“SFAS No. 123R™), Share-
Based Pavment, which was issued by the FASB in December 2004, SFAS No. 123R revises SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock
Based Conipensation. and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25 (“APB No. 25"}, Accounting for Stock Issued to Emplovees, and its related
interpretations. SFAS No. 123R requires recognition of the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity
instruments in the financial statements over the period the employee is required (o perform the services in exchange for the award
(presumptively the vesting period). SFAS No. 123R also requires measurement of the cost of employee services received in exchange
for an award based on the grant-date fair value of the award. SFAS No. 123R also amends SFAS No. 95, Statement of Cash Flows, o
require that excess tax benefits be reported as financing cash inflows, rather than as a reduction of taxes paid, which is included within
operating cash {lows,

We adopted SFAS No. 123R using, the moditied prospective application as permitted under SFAS No. 123R. Accordingly. prior
period amounts have not been restated. Under this application, we are required to record compensation expense for all awards granted
after the date of adoption and for the unvested portion of previously granted awards that remain outstanding at the date of adoption,

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, we used the intrinsic value method as prescribed by APB No. 25 and thus recognized no
compensation expense for options granted with exercise prices equal to the fair market value of our common stock on the date of
grant.

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The risk-free
interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury rate for the expected life al the time of grant. We have limited trading history beginning July
27, 2005; as such our expected volatility is based on the average long-term implied volatilitics of peer companies. Also, due to our
limited trading bistory, we are using the “simplified method” to calculate expected holding periods as allowed under the provisions of
the SEC’s Staft Accounting Bulletin Nv. 107 (“SAB 107"}, which represents the period of time that options granted are expected to be
outstanding. Forfeitures are estimated at 5% based on certain historical data.

Results of Operations
‘The following table sets forth selected statement of operations data as percentages of revenues for the periods indicated:

Yeors Ended June 39,
2008 2007 2006
{(dollars in millions)

Rc.vuluu;
Cort poy iGN ST S00E O A% . S S E O S a2 1%
494 89 53.2 8.9 185.3 255
[’iotaln..vcnuc..s _ L e 8 SR 00.0% . . $.5068 10007 > 8 7275 10005
Cost of openllons 460 3 834 499 4 83 7 599.3 824
(Gross profit, b o e A O TO166 1 . 1282, 116 .
General and ndmlnl‘%lr‘ltwe expenses 41.7 1.6 45.2 6.2

g
nd

807 11.1%

332 60 303

Qe [Xeqiens R R R R T 1 A N R IR Y W
Ncl incmnc S 202 3.7% S 184 3.1% $ 44 4.7%
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Year Ended June 30, 2008 Compared to Year Ended June 30, 2007

Revenues. Revenues decreased 7.5%, or $44.8 million, to $552.0 million for the fiscal year ended June 3D, 2008 from $596.8
million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. The decrease was duc to a $41.0 miilion decrease in core poverline revenues and a
$3.8 million decrease in storm restoration revenues. Total billable hours decreased 12.9% during fiscal 2008}0mpared to fiscal 2007.
In addition, our average revenue-producing headcount decreased 12.5% during fiscal 2008 from the prior yedr.

Our core powerline service revenues decreased 7.5% 10 $502.6 million for fiscal 2008 from $543.6 millign for fiscal 2007. Our
core powerline revenue per man-hour increased 6.4%, while on the other hand, our core powerline billable m@n-hours decreased
13.6%. Billable hours decreased primarily due to our terminating certain services during our 2007 fiscal yea#f that did not meet
strategic goals, including right-of-way maintenance, and our exiting certain accounts that did not meet long-tdrm profitability goals.
These exited accounts represented approximately $23.0 million of revenue for the 2007 tiscal year.

Qur storm restoration revenues decreased 7.3% to $49.4 million for fiscal 2008 from $53.2 million for f'15cal 2007. Our storm
restoration revenues are highly volatile and unprediciable.

Gross Profit. Gross profit decreased $5.7 million to $91.7 million for fiscal 2008 from $97.4 million for fiscal 2007. Gross profit
as a percentage of revenues increased to 16.6% from 16.3% during fiscal 2008 primarily due to positive impagts related 10 customer
pricing increases, operational efficiency improvements and the successful elimination of certain lower-margig accounts and services
during fiscal 2007, and lower fleet repair parts expenses, partially offset by higher fuel prices, an increase in group insurance costs and
cost related to the initial rollout of fire retardant clothing. :

H

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses decreased $4.8 million to $#1.7 million for fiscal
2008 from $46.5 million for fiscal 2007. This decrease is primarily due to a $4.6 million decreasc in legal feés As a percentage of
revenues, general and administrative expenses decreased to 7.6% from 7.8%.

Loss on Sale and Impairment of Property and Equipment. L.oss on sale and impairment of property and- equipment was $3.1
million for fiscal 2008 compared 10 $1.0 million for fiscal 2007. The level of losses is affected by several fadtors, including the timing
of the continued replenishment of aging, damaged or excess fleet equipment and conditions in the market fmi.\sed equipment, Most
of the losses for fiscal 2008 related to certain equipment that we decided to permanently idle in the second fifeal quarter of the year,
and for which we initially recorded a $1.9 million impairment charge. We subsequently realized $0.6 mllhotl in additional losses
when the equipment was sold.

Y
+

Interest Expense and Other, Net. Interest expense and other, net decreased $5.9 million to $13.7 millionfor fiscal 2008 from
$19.6 million for fiscal 2007, This decrease was primarily due to a reduction in average debt levels and low¢ interest rates.

1

Income Tax Expense. Income tax expense increased $1.1 million to $13.0 million for fiscal 2008 from ﬂl.‘) million for fiscal
2007 primarily as a result of the increase in income before income taxes. The effective tax rate was 39.1% afd 39.4% for fiscal 2008
and 2007, respectively.

Net Income. As a tesult of the factors discussed above, net income increased $1.8 million to $20.2 rmlhon for fiscal 2008 from
$18.4 million for fiscal 2007. :

Year Ended June 30, 2007 Compared to Year Ended June 30, 2006

Revenues. Revenues decreased 18.0%, or $130.7 million, to $596.8 million for the fiscal year ended Jurg 30, 2007 from $727.5
million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. The decrease was due 10 a $132.1 million decrease in storm jevenues partially offset
by a $1.4 million increase in core powerline revenues. We generated substantial revenues from storm restorgtion services in fiscal
2006 relaled to major storms impacting the Gulf Coast and Florida. As a result, total billable hours decreased 17.7% during fiscal
2007 compared to fiscal 2006. Our crews worked significant amounts of overtime on storm restoration projdets during fiscal 2006. In
addition, our average revenue-producing headcount decreased 8.0% during fiscal 2007 from the prior year.

Our core powerline service revenues increased 0.3% to $543.6 million for fiscal 2007 from $542.2 millign for fiscal 2006, Our
revenue per man-hour increased 3.5%, while on the other hand, our core powerline billable man-hours decregsed 3.2%. The slight
growth in core powerline revenues is primarily a result of renegotiated customer pricing, partially offset by tBe reduction in revenue
related to exiting right-of-way vegetation maintenance and other non-strategic or non-profitable work during2007.
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Owr storm restoration revenues decreased 71.3% to $53.2 million for fiscal 2007 from $185.3 million for fiscal 2006. We
generated unusually high revenues from storm restoration services during the prior fiscal year due primarily to Hurricanes Dennis,
Katrina. Rita and Wilma that impacted the Gulf Coast and Florida.

Gross Profit. Gross profit decreased $30.8 million 1o $97.4 million for tiscal 2007 from $128.2 million for fiscal 2006. Gross
profit as a percentage of revenues decr2ased to 16.3% from 17.6% during fiscal 2007 primarily due 1o the significant decrease in
higher margin storm restoration revenues. an increase in depreciation expense related to lower salvage value estimates on equipment,
losses in our Florida operation in early fiscal 2007 and higher fuel prices. These factors were partially offset by a significant reduction
in scM-insurance expense due (o favorable development of past claims and current year claims experience, elimination of right-of-way
and other unprofitable work during 2007 and favorable price renegotiations,

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses increased $1.3 million to $46.5 million lor fiscal
2007 from $45.2 million for fiscat 2006, This increase is primarily due to higher legal fees associated with non-compete litigation
against former employees of approximately $1.8 million, expenses related to the termination of former officers of approximately $1.0
million, and an increase in information technology consulting of approximately $1.6 million. partially oftset by lower compensation
related expenses of approximately $3.€ million. As a percentage of revenues, general and administrative expenses increased to 7.8%
from 6.2%.

Loss en Sale and Impairment of Property and Equipment. 1.0ss on sale and impairment of property and equipment decreased
$1.3 million to $1.0 million for fiscal 2007 compared 1o $2.3 million for fiscal 2006, The level of losses is altected by several factors,
including the timing of the continued replenishment of aging, damaged or excess fleet equipment and conditions in the market for
used equipment.

Interest Expense and Other, Net. Interest expense and other, net decreased $4.4 million to $19.6 miilion for fiscal 2007 from
$24.0 million for fiscal 2006. This decrease was primarily due to a reduction in average debt levels and a decrease in accelerated
amortization of deferred loan costs. We had a $2.4 million charge 10 accelerated amortization of deferred loan costs due to a
significant debt payment using IPO prcceeds in fiscal 2006,

Income Tax Expense. Income tax ¢xpense decreased $10.4 million to $11.9 million for fiscal 2007 from $22.3 million for fiscal
2006 primarily as a result of the decrease in income before income taxes. The effective tax rate was 39.4% for both fiscal 2007 and
2006.

Net Income. As aresult of the facters discussed above, net income decreased $16.0 million 10 $18.4 million for fiscal 2007 from
$34.4 million for fiscal 2006.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary cash needs have been for capital expenditures, working capital and payments under our senior credit facility. Our
primary sources of cash for fiscal 2008 were cash provided by operations and (0 a lesser extent, proceeds from the sale of property and
equipment. Our primary source of cask for fiscal 2007 was cash provided by operations. QOur primary sources of cash for fiscal 2006
were cash provided by the issuance of stock and, 10 a lesser extent, cash provided by operations,

We need working capital to support seasonal variations in our business, primarily due (o the impact of weather conditions on the
electric infrastructure and the corresponding spending by our customers on electric service and repairs. We may experience seasonal
working capital needs in connection with our storm restoration services. The increased service activity causes an excess of customer
bitlings over customer collections, leading to increased accounts receivable during those periods. In the past, we have utilized
borrowings under the revolving portion of our senior credit facility to satisfy normal operating costs during these periods.

As of June 30, 2008, our cash totaled $11.4 million and we had $66.4 million available under the $90.0 million revolving portion
of our senior credit facility (after giving effect (o the outstanding standby letters of credit of $23.6 million).

We believe that our cash flow from. operations. available cash and cash equivalents, and borrowings available under our senior
credit facility will be adequate to meet our ordinary course liquidity necds for the foreseeable future. However, our ability to satisfy
our obligations or to fund planned capital expenditures will depend on our future performance, which, to a certain extent, is subject to
general econemic, financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other factors that are beyond our coatrol.
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Changes in Cash Flows: 2008 Compared to 2007
Year Ended June 3%

2008 2007;

(m mlllmns)

Net cash provided by operating activities decreased $22.7 million to $55.8 million for fiscal 2008 from $#8.5 million for fiscal
2007. The decrease in cash flows from operating activities was primarily due to the significant decrease in agcounts receivable and
work completed not billed during fiscal 2007. For the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, our combined redenue days oulstanding in
billed accounts receivable and work completed not billed increased to 68 days from 66 days, respectively,

Net cash provided by investing activities was $2.6 million for fiscal 2008 compared to net cash used in igvesting activities of
$22.6 million for fiscal 2007. The change in cash provided by investing activities was primarily due to the décrease ir purchases of
fleet equipment.

Net cash used in financing activities decreased $9.3 million to $48.5 million for fiscal 2008 from $57.8 million for fiscal 2007.
Net cash used in financing activities for fiscal 2008 and 2007 primarily reflected net payments under our senibr credit facility.

'
¥

Changes in Cash Flows: 2007 Compared to 2006

Year Ended June 30,
2007 2006

(in millions)

Net cash provided by operaling activities increased $3.6 million to $78.5 million for fiscal 2007 from $74.9 million for fiscal
2006. The increase in cash provided by operations was primarily due to the increases in working capital prinjarily due to the favorable
receivable collection trends and was partially offsct by a decrease in net income. For the years ended June 3@, 2007 and 2006, our
combined revenue days outstanding in billed accounts receivable and work completed not billed decreased t§ 66 from 73 days,
respectively. i

Net cash used in investing activities decreased $18.3 million to $22.6 million for fiscal 2007 from 340.9 fmillion for fiscal 2006,
Capital expenditures for both periods consisted primarily of purchases of vehicles and equipment used 1o serfice our customers,

Net cash used in financing activities increased $24.1 million to $57.8 million for fiscal 2007 {rom $33.7 gnillion for fiscai 2006.
Net cash used in financing activities for fiscal 2007 primarily reflected payments under our senior credit faciity. Net cash used in
financing activities for fiscal 2006 primarily reflected a net pay down on our senior credit facility of $166. O illion that was partially
offset by proceeds from stock issuances of $128.9 million.

Capital Expenditures ‘

be affected by the addition of new customers or expansion of existing customer relationships. Capital expenditures were $8.6 million,
$32.1 million and $50.3 million for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Capital expenditures for all pergods consisted primarily
of purchases of vehicles and equipment used to service our customers. As of June 30, 2008, we had no malegial outstanding
commitments for capital expenditures. We expect capital expenditures to range from $30 million to $40 millfon for the year ending
June 30, 2009, which could vary depending on the addition of new customers or increased work on existing gustomer relationships.

We intend to fund those expenditures primarily from operating cash flow and available cash and cash equivajents.
i

We routinely invest in vehicles, equipment and technology. The timing and volume of such capital exp?dilures in the future will

EDS Acquisition

On September 1, 2008, we acquired substantially all of the assets of EDS, an affiliate of The Shaw Gro i , for $24.25 million in
cash, plus the assumption of certain operating liabilities. We funded this acquisition with available cash andkash equivalents,
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Senior Credit Facility

As of June 30, 2008, we had $140.5 million of term loan indebtedness outstanding under our senior credit facility and our
borrowing availability under the revolving portion of our senior credit facility was $66.4 million (after giving eflect 10 $23.6 million
of outstanding standby letters of credity. The obligations under our senior credit facility are unconditionally guaranteed by us and each
of our existing and subsequently acquired or organized subsidiaries {other than Pike Electric, Inc., which is the borrower under the
facility) and secured on a first-priority basis by security interests (subject to permitted liens) in substantially all asscts owned by us,
Pike Efectric, Inc. and each of our other domestic subsidiaries. subject (o limited exceptions.

Onr credit agreement contains a number of affirmative and restrictive covenants including limitations on mergers. consolidations
and dissolutions, sales of assets, investnents and acquisitions. indebtedness and liens, and other restricted payments. Under the credil
agreement, we are permitted to incur maximum capital expenditures of $70.0 million in fiscal 2009 and in any fiscal year thereafter,
subject to a one year carry-forward of 50% of the unused amount from the previous fiscal year. In addition, the credit agrecment
provides that we are required to meet the following financial covenants, which are tested quarterly:

* aminimum cash interest coverage ratio, based upon the ratio of consolidated EBITDA to consolidated cash interest expense, of
at least 3.50 to 1.00; and

* 4 maximum leverage ratio, based upon the ratio of consolidated funded debt to consolidated EBITDA, of 3.75 to 1.00 for the
guarter ending June 30. 2008. and declining ratios on an annual basis thereafter.

We repaid $51.0 million of term lcans outstanding under our senior credit facility during fiscal 2008 with cash provided by
operations and, to a lesser exient, proceeds from the sale ol property and equipment.

Contractual Obligations and Other Commitments

As of June 30, 2008, our contractual obligations and other commitments were as follows;
Payment Obligations by Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

Total 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter
(m lmlhons)

80 - 7
2.1

%@_ temswggym %gat;onﬁ”-(?)%i«f"
Opemtine lease obligations
Pirkchase obligntions.,” . T 7 e
Deferred compensanon {3) 134 3.7

SRS a8

—t

(1) Includes only obligations to pay principal not interest expense.
(2) Represents estimated interest payments to be made on our variable rate debt. All interest payments assume that principal payments
are made as originally scheduled. Interest rates utilized to determine interest payments for variable rate debt are based upon our

current lerm foan interest rate and include the impact of our interest rate swaps. For more information, sce Note 6 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

(3) For a description of the deterred compensation obligation, sce Note 13 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Stalements,

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Other than letters of credit issued under the $90.0 mitlion revolving portion of our senior credit facility and our obligations under
the surety and performance bonds described below, we do not have any other transactions, obligations or relationships that could be
considered material oft-balance sheet arrangements,

As of June 30, 2008, we had $23.6 million of standby leners of credit issued under our senior credit facility primarily for
insurance and bonding purposes.
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In the ordinary course of business, we are required by certain customers (o post surcty or performance bauds in connection with
services that we provide to them. As of June 30, 2008, we had $34.6 million in surety bonds outstanding, and we also had provided
collaieral in the form of a letter of credit to sureties in the amount of $4.0 million, which is included in the totpl letters of credit
outstanding above, !

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. SFAS No. 157 defines ?ir value, establishes a
measurement framework and expands disclosure requirements. SFAS No. 157 does not require any new fair galue measurements but
does apply to assets and liabilities that are required to be recorded at fair value pursuant to other accounting sgndards SFAS No. 157
15 effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We adopted SFAS No. 157 on July 1, 2008 gnd do not cxpect the
standard to have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements. i

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Findncial Liabilities,
including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115. SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure ai?air value many
financial instruments and certain other items at fair value that arc not currently required to be measured. Unréalized gains and losses
on items for which the fair value option has been elected are reported in earnings. SFAS No. 159 does not aff®ct any existing
accounting literature that requires certain assets and liabilitics to be carried at fair value. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007. We adopted SFAS No. 159 on July 1, 2008 and do not expect the stand4rd to have a material
effect on our consolidated financial statements. '

]

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), Business Combinations. SFAS No. 141(R) wil significantly changc the
accounting for business combinations in a number of areas including the treatment of coatingent congideration, contingencies,
acquisilion costs, and restructuring costs. In addition, under SFAS No. 141R, changes in deferred tax asset jvaluation allowances and
acquired income tax uncertainties in a business combination after the measurement period will impact ingome tax expense. SFAS
No. 141(R) is effective for fiscal years beginning afier December 15, 2008 and early adoption is not permittgd. SFAS No. 141(R) will
impact our consolidated financial stalements if we are party to a business combination that closes after thegprorouncement has been
adopted. H

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated FinanciakStatements, an
amendment of ARB No. 51. SFAS No. 160 will change the accounting and reporting for minerity interests, which will be
recharacterized as noncontrolling interests and classified as a component of equity. This new consolidation rgethod will significantly
change the accounting for transactions with minority interest holders. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal ydars beginning after
December 15, 2008. We are currently evaluating the effects of No. 160, but do not expect the standard to hade a material effect on our
consolidated financial statements.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, Disclosnres about Derivative Instruments and HedgmgAcrwmes SFAS No,
161 is intended to improve financial reporting about derivative instruments and hedging activities by requiris enhanced disclosures 10
enable investors to better understand how and why an enlity uses derivative instruments, how they are accousjted for under SFAS No.
133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, and related interpretations, and their effefts on an entity’s
financial position, financial performance, and cash flows. It is effective for financial statements issued for fisgal years and interim
periods beginning after November 15, 2008, with early application encouraged. We are currently evaluating ¢he effects of SFAS No.
161, but do not expect the standard to have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains statements that are intended to be “forward-looking statemegts” under the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, Section 27A of the Sccuritics Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the $ecurities Exchange Act
of 1934, These forward-looking statements are based on current expectations, estimates, forecasts and projecgions about our company
and the industry in which we operate and management’s beliefs and assumptions. Such statements include, iy particular, statements
about our plans, strategies and prospects under the headings “Business - Industry Trends,” “- Competitive Sgengths,” *'- Business
Strategy,” “- Our Services,” “- Competition,” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conglition and Results of
Operations.”
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Words such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “plan,” “predict,” “potential,” “continue,” “believe,”
“seek,” “estimate,” variations of such words and similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-lopking statements. These
statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions which gre difficult to predict.
Such risks inciude, without limitation, those identified under the heading “Risk Factors.” Therefore, actual ofitcomes and results may
differ materially from what is expressed or forecasted in such forward-looking statements. These forward-lo kmg statements include,
but are not limited to, statements relating to:
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e our belief that future growth in demand for services generally will be driven by increased demand for electricity due 0
growth in electricity consumption and increased outsourcing by power suppliers and the need to correct the inadequacy of
aging electric infrastructure;

s our belief thal our acquisition of EDS will expand our service offering to include engineering, design and construction of the
distribution, transmission;

s our belief that outsourcing by electric companies will continue in the future;

= our belief that the lawsuits, claims or other proceedings to which we are subject in the ordinary course of business will not
have a material adverse etlect on our results of operalion or {financial position;

¢ our expectation that our capital expenditures will range from $30 million to $40 million for the year ended June 30, 2009 and
our intention to fund those expenditures from operating cash flow and available cash and cash equivalents;

s our belief that that our business will benefit from any increase in spending in the transmission infrastructure due to the
associated increases in maintenance, extension and upgrade of distribution and sub-500 kV transmission lines;

* our intention o continue Lo increase our penetration and market share within our existing service territory by expanding our
existing customer relationships, altracting new customers and pursuing selective acquisitions;

¢ our belicf that our quality service, modern fleet, regional presence, storm restoration capabilities and strong safety record will
enable us (0 develop our business with both existing and prospective customers as they further outsource their servicing
needs;

& our intention to continug (o grow our business by seeking new opportunitics from our existing customers that have operations
oulside our current service territory, capturing new customers in other geographic markets and pursuing selective
acquisilions;

* our belief that we will be in a position to captlure a significant share of the expected increased amount of work in our target
market by focusing on the distribution and sub-500 kV transmission sector of the industry and providing high-quality
services to our customers;

*  our belicf that we are well positioned to benefil from expected long-term industry trends;

s our belief thal the demand for skilled line workers will increase dramatically over the next five to ten years and our intention
to continue to focus on employee development and retention;

+ our consideration of differen: alternatives for implementing a comprehensive information technology solution that would
improve and enhance our information systems and give us a technological advantage over competitors in our industry;

« our belief that provisions in the Energy Policy Act of 2005 (i) will lead to a more efficient permitting process, which should
encourage investment in the iransmission system, (ii) could spur investment interest from non-utility entities, which are likely
to focus on reducing costs, while enabling utilities to focus on their core competencies, (iii) will create a more profitable
situation for transmission system owners, (iv) will promote increased transmission construction and help ensure reliability in
certain regions of the country. and (v) could lead to increased interest in outsourcing solutions;

s our expectation that a substantial portion of our total revenues will continue to be derived from a limited group of customers
given the composition of the utilities, cooperatives and municipalities in our geographical market;

*  our belief that core powerline revenues will decline in periods of storm restoration; and

¢ our belief that our cash flow [Tom operations, available cash and cash equivalents, and borrowings available under our senior
credit facility will be adequate to meet our ordinary course liquidily needs for the foreseeable future.

Except as required under the federal securities laws and the rules and regulations of the SEC, we do not have any intention or
obligation {o update publicly any forward-looking statements after we file this Annual Report on Form 10-K, whether as a result of
new information, future cvents or otherwise.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Interest Rate Risk Q

We are exposed to market risk related 1o changes in interest rates on borrowings under our senior credit facility, which bears
interest based on London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”), plus an applicabte margin dependent upon a totalfleverage ratio. We use
derivative financial instruments to manage cxposure to fluctuations in interest rates on our senior credit facility, These derivative
financial instruments, which are currently all swap agreements, are not entered into for trading or speculative pgrposes. A swap
agreement is a contract to exchange a floaling rate for a fixed rate without the exchange of the underlying notiohal amount. Effective
December 2007, we entered into two separale iaterest rate swap agreements. The first agreement had a notiona] amount of $60.0
million, an effective date of December 13, 2007 and an expiration date of December 13, 2009. The second agréement had a notional
amount of $40.0 million, an effective date of December 19, 2007 and an expiration date of December 19, 20094 Under both swap
agreements, we pay a fixed rate of 3.99% and receive a rate equivalent to the thirty-day LIBOR, adjusted montfly. Based on our
current leverage ratio, these swap agreements effectively fix the interest rate at 5.49% for $100.0 million of oudfierm debt. The fair
value of the interest rate swaps at June 30, 2008 was reflected on the balance sheet in accrued expenses and othr for $0.9 million and
in other liabilities for $0.4 million.

Based on our outstanding debt of $140.5 million at June 30, 2008 and after including the impact of our active interest rate swaps,
a hypothetical change in the annual interest rate of 50 basis points would result in a change in annual cash intergst expense of $0.2
million. Actual changes in interest rates may differ materially from the hypothetical assumptions used in compgting this exposure.

Diesel Fuel Risk

We have a large fleet of vehicles and equipment that primarily usc diesel fuel and, as a result, have markekgrisk for changes in the
prices of diesel fuel. If diesel prices rise, our gross profit and operating income would be negatively affected dyie to additional costs
that may not be fully recovered through increases in prices to customers. At June 30, 2008, we had no active desel fuel derivatives, as
our two diesel fuel swaps expired in February 2008. We have developed a diesel fuel hedging strategy, and supsequent to June 30,
2008 we began implementing this strategy, which consists of the use of both diesel fuel swaps and costless colfars with varying period
lengths (o decrease our price volatility going forward. Our goal is to gradually increase our hedged positions 1§ 40% to 60% of our
annual volumes by June 30, 2009 and ultimately maintain a program level of hedged positions at 60% to 70% $f our annual volumes

on a rolling basis, !

Based on our projected fuel usage for fiscal 2009, a $0.50 change in the price per gallon of fuel would chinge our annual cost of
operations by approximately $4.6 million. Actual changes in costs of operations may differ materially from the hypothetical
assumptions used in compulting this exposure.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maimtaining adequate internal control over fingncial reporting. Our
internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the refiability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepled accounting
principles.

The Company's internal control over financial reporting inctudes policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect transactions and dispositions of assets; (2) provide reasahable assurances that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generafly accepled accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and the directors
of Pike; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisjtion, use or disposition
of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on our financial statements,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstaiegnents. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject Lo the risk that controls may become inadequat® because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deleriorate. :

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2008. In making this
assessment, management used the crileria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treddway Commission
{C0OS0) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework. Based on our assessment and those criteria, management fas concluded that we
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2008.

Our independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP, audited the effectiveness of our inte al controls over

financial reporting. Ernst & Young has issued their report on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting which is
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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KReport of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Pike Electric Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Pike Electric Corporation as of June 30, 2008 and 2007, and the
related consolidated statements of income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30,
2008. Qur audits also included the Anancial statement schedule listed in the Index at Ilem 15(a)(2). These financial statements and
schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audils in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatlement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall tfinancial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred Lo above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
Pike Electric Corporation at June 30, 2008 and 2007, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended June: 30, 2008, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principies. Also, in our opirion,
the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial stalements taken as a whole, presents fairly
in all material respects the informaiion set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Pike
Electric Corporation’s internal conirol over financial reporting as of June 30, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated
September 4, 2008 expressed an urquatified opinion thereon.

/s/  FErnst & Young LLP

Greensboro, North Carolina
September 4, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Pike Electric Cerporation

We have audited Pike Electric Cerporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2008, based on criteria established
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the
COSO criteria). Pike Electric Corporation’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal dontrol over financial
reporting, and for its assessment of the cftectivencss of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanymg ——
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Qur responsibility is to express an opinibn on the company's
internal control over {inancial reporting based on our audit. {

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective Snternal control over ==
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Qur audit included obtaining an understanding oflinternal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operhting cifectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary?n the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

i IIIIIIIIIIIIIII

A company’s internal control gver financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance rcga#iing the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of tinancial statements for external purposcs in accordance with generallg accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures Ll%n (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositim:%]ol‘ the assets of the
company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of (gnancial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and cxpenditures of the company ark being made only in
accordance with authorizations of managemcnt and directors of the company; and (3) provnde reasonable - assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could "m, a material effect
on the financial statcments,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over linancial reporting may not prevent or detect missialemegts. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate Iieuause of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

J
In our opinion, Pike Electric Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over fingncial reporting as of
June 30, 2008, based on the COSO criteria. :

We also have audited, in accordance wilh the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Pike Electric Corporation as of June 30, 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of
income, stockholder’s equity and cash tlows for cach of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2008 of Plqulechlc Corporation
and our report dated September 4, 2008 expressed an unqualitied opinion thercon.

s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Greensboro, NC
September 4, 2008
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PIKE ELECTRIC CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except par value amounts)

June 30,
2008 2007

i

Cash and cash eq

uwalenls _ - h) 11,357 $ 1,467

AR
Sehis it

Tolalasscls - § ‘ 1,26 3 545497

LIABILITIIB AND STOCKHOLDERS llQUlTY
Cirrent Habilities W%ﬁ i T / DO, o i
Accou‘nts azable' _ ’ - $ ‘_10,867 $ 8,503

Taicumnbiﬁnies " . 71023 60906

g temdcbsii o

Insurance and clann accn.nls nct ol'currem poruon 79 o . 10,894

Preferred slock, par value $0001 per share; lOOOOOaulhonzcd
qlnmq no ‘;hﬂl'f S mqued and outstandin ] _ _ — —

Tolallmbllltles -andslockholders equity o - $ 510,263 $ 545,497

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PIKE ELECTRIC CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
{(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Years Ended June 30,
2008 2007 2006

506837 .5 Rran0
499,422 09247
97415 08,203

Revenues ;
Cost of operations

Loss on éalﬁ‘gpgéiﬁqm'inmu‘t of pl'opcny.ngfiécé_zyipmf_.ml ) - 1:05_2 i

Income from operations
?”“‘41 PN ,F’)‘%’ﬂ‘%&&’ ne :
Ciheiexpense mgome) s cobll 0
Interest expense
4 ) e o
P2 Other, netags,. .. -
Total other expense

13.705

33032
12,983

R

,ry‘"_

25249

ncome before mcoms taxs

T

31.023

" Poon

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. !
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PIKE ELECTRIC CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Years ended June 30,
2008 2007 2006

Cash flows from operaling acuv:ucs
/ﬂe{ inéform "’,, # , Ty s ’.“,, 2 ,z{;,f’ae/&,f . - " [t
Adjustments to remnmle net income to net cash
provndcd by operdtmg activitics:

(6.074) ( 24%)
058 On Salc AT IDALCEAL 1 DTONCHY And cquipment 0. ~ *3043 - 791083
Equity compensation expensc 2.903 2,629
.- Fixcess W benelit from stock-based’compensation - 4. (G763 T3R8

Changes ino Ll"l[ll‘lﬂ' assc[s dI]d lnbllmes

Tosgrance and Claim :
Accounts payable and other
I Deferred wmpcf%ﬁn I

.aymenls on lon
- jl\fmg’cnghz’l aélm

(2 sooi . 500)

sy

fi - LS oy e f).;{-«—-
Procceds Irom exercise of stock options and cmployee 1,562 3,015 ¢ 3, 924
stock purchases
:’c’é’é’sﬁ taxbg;n»eﬁt W,

e A A

R T 1

et iiicroase (deCtense) i cash and cashieaiivalents 7
Cash and cash equwalents benmmno of year

R

= o
W/M?z«mdm“w‘ - PR T s

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. -
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PIKE ELECTRIC CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

1. Organization and Business

As used in this section, unless the context requires otherwise, the terms “Pike,” “Pike Electric,” “we,” “us,” and
“our”, refer to Pike Electric Corporation and its subsidiaries and all predecessors of Pike Electric Corporation and its
subsidiaries.

Pike Electric is headquartered in Mount Airy, North Carolina.  'We are one of the largest providers of
outsourced electric distribution and transmission services in the United States. We operate in one reportable segment
and perform engineering, ¢esign, maintenance, upgrade and construction of electric distribution powerlines, sub-500
kilovolt (“kV™) transmission powerlines and substations for electric utilities, cooperatives and municipalities.
Additionally, we provide slorm restoration services. We do not have operations or assets outside the United States.

We monitor revenue by two categories of services: core powerline and storm restoration. We use this
breakdown because core powerline services represent ongoing service revenues, most of which are generated by our
customers’ recurring mainienance needs. Storm restoration revenues represent additional revenue opportunities that
depend on weather conditions.

The following table sets forth our revenue by category of service for the periods indicated:

g enl ded June 30

On August 1, 2005, Pike Electric completed an initial public offering (“IPO™) of its common stock. The IPO
was preceded by a series of ransactions affecting Pike’s capital structure, including a reincorporation transaction in
July 2005 (Note 3).

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated finarcial statements include the accounts of Pike Electric Corporation and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries. All intercompany amounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepled in the
United States (‘GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant items subject to such
estimates and assumptions include the allowance for doubtful accounts; future cash flows associated with long-lived
assets; useful lives and salvage values of fixed assets for depreciation purposes; workers compensation and
employee benefit liabilities; income taxes; and fair value of financial instrurnents. Due to the subjective nature of
these estimates, actual results could differ from those estimates,
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Reclassifications
Certain amounts reported previously have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentadon.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly-liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less at the date of
purchase to be cash equivalents.

Revenue Recognifion

Revenues from service arrangements are recognized when services are performed. We generate subgtantially all
of our revenues from service arrangements based on a price per hour worked or a price per unit of servige, Revenue
on hourly-based services is determined based on actual labor and equipment time completed and for majerials billed
to customers. Revenue on unit-based services is recognized as the units are completed, and the price forieach unit is
determined under the service arrangement. For unit-based services any estimated loss is recognized whein the actual
cosls to complete each unit exceed original estimates. Costs typically include all direct labor and materidl costs and
those indirect costs related to performance, such as indirect labor, supplies, tools, repairs and depreciatign costs. We
recognize the full amount of any estimated loss on these projects if estitated costs to complete the remdining units
for the project exceed the revenue to be received from such units. As of each of the periods presented e did not
have a material amount of loss accruals. :

Work completed not billed represents revenues earned on hourly service arrangements and recognized in the
period performed but not billed until a subsequent period and work performed on certain unit-based sergice
arrangements and not yet billed to customers in accordance with specific contract terms regarding the tiging of
billing. In some instances. a portion of the total revenues billed under the customer arrangement are held by the
customer as a “retainage” until the job is complete, and we record these amounts as work completed nog billed.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We provide an allowance for doubtful accounts that represents an estimate of uncollectible account§ reccivable.
The determination of the allowance inctudes certain judgments and estimates including the customers’ Willingness
or ability to pay and the ongoing relationship with the customer. In certain instances, primarily relating §o storm
restoration work and other high volume billing situations, billed amounts may differ from ultimately colected
amounts. We incorporate our historical experience with our customers into the estimation of the allowajce for
doubtful accounts. These amounts are continuously monitored as additional information is obtained. Actounts
receivable are due trom customers located within the United States. Any material change in our custm%rs’ business
or cash flows would affect our ability to collect amounts due. :

Accounts receivable, net and work completed not billed included allowances for doubtful accounts of $699 and
$942 at June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively. We recorded bad debt expense of $297, $660 and $1, 360§for fiscal
2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively,

Inventories

Inventories consist of machine parts, supplics, small tools and other materials used in the ordinary Gourse of
business and are stated at the lower of average cost or market.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is carried at cost. Replacements and improvements are capitalized when csts incurred
for those purposes extend the useful life of the asset. We charge maintenance and repairs to expense as fncurred.
Depreciation on capital assets is computed using the straight-line method over periods ranging from 3 LQ 39 years.
Our management makes assumptions regarding future conditions in determining estimated useful lives dnd potential
salvage values, and reviews these assumptions at least annually. These assumptions impaci the amountjof
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deprectalion expense recognized in the period and any gain or loss recognized once the asset is disposed of or
classified as “held for sale.”

We review our long-lived assets for impairment when events or changes in business conditions indicate the
carrying value of the asset may not be recoverable, as required by SFAS No. 144, Accounting for tihe Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. Impairment of assels classified as “held and used” is evaluated when the sum of the
undiscounted estimated future cash flows expected is less than the carrying value of the assets. If such measurement
indicates a possible impairment, the estimated fair value of the asset is compared to the net book value 10 measure
the impairment charge, if any. When the criteria for classifying assets as “held for salc” has been met, the assels are
recorded at the lower of carrying value or fair value, less selling costs. Fair value for this purpose is generally
determined based on prices in the used equipment market,

Valuation of Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

As a result of our acquisition of Red Simpson in July 2004, we acquired goodwill totaling $91,402 and certain
identifiable intangible assets including customer arrangements, customer relationships and non-compete agreements
ultimately totaling $55,71C, which are being amortized over their estimated vscful lives (Note 5). In accordance with
SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, we identify and value, separatc from goodwill, intangible assels, such as
customer arrangements, customner relationships, and non-compete agreements, that arise from contractual or other
legal rights or that are capable of being separated or divided from the acquired entity and sold, transferred, licensed,
rented, or exchanged. The air value of identified intangible assets is based upon an estimate of the future economic
benefits expected to result from ownership, which represents the amount at which it could be bought or sold in a
current transaction between willing parties, that is, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. For customers with
whom we have an existing relationship prior to the date of the transaction, we utilize assumptions that a marketplace
participant would consider to estimate the fair value of customer relationships thal an acquired entity had with pre-
existing customers in accordance with EITF 02-17, Recognition of Customer Relationship Intangible Asseis
Acquired in a Business Combination.

In accordance with STFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, we test goodwill for impairment at
least annuatly, or more frecuently if events or circumstances exist which indicate impairment may exist. Examples
of such events or circumstances may include a significant change in business climate, a loss of significant customers
or the other parties to non-compete agreements breaching their obligations thereunder, among others. We generally
complete our annual analysis of the reporting unit on the first day of the fourth fiscal quarter. A two-step fair value-
based Lest is applied to assess goodwill for impairment. The first step compares the fair value of a reporting unit 1o
its carrytag amount, including goodwill. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the
second step is then performed. The second step compares the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill to the
fair value of the goodwill. If the fair value of the goodwill is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss
would be recorded in income from operations, Intangible assets with definite lives are amortized over their estimated
useful lives and are also reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amount may not be realizable. We have no intangibles with indefinite lives other than goodwill.

We make certain estimates and assumptions in order to determine the fair value of net assets and liabilitics,
including, among other thir.gs, an assessment of market conditions, projected cash flows, cost of capital and growth
rates, which could significantly impact the reported value of goodwill and other intangible assets. Estimating future
cash flows requires significant judgment and the projections may vary from cash flows eventually realized. When
necessary, we utilize third-party specialists in the preparation of valuations. The valuations employ a combination of
present value techniques to measure fair value, corroborated by comparisons to estimated market multiples, These
valuations are based on a discount rate determined by management to be consistent with industry discount rates and
the risks inherent in their current business model.

Insurance and Claim Accruals
We are partially sclf-insured for individual workers’ compensation, vehicle and general liability, and health
insurance claims. To mitigate a portion of these risks, we maintain commercial insurance for individual workers’

compensation and vehicle and generat liability claims exceeding $1.0 million ($0.5 million per claim prior to 2004).
We also maintain commercial insurance for health insurance claims exceeding $0.35 million per person on an
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annual basis. We determine the amount of our loss reserves and loss adjustment expenses for setf-insurgd claims
based on third-party actuarial analyses prepared semi-annually that use both company-specific and indu$try data, as
well as gencral economic information. Our estimates for insurance loss exposures require us 10 monitod and
evaluate our insurance claims throughout their life cycles. Using this data and our assumptions about the emerging
trends, we estimate the size of ultimale claims. Our most significant assumplions in forming our estimzﬁes include
the trend in loss costs, the expected consistency with prior year claims of the frequency and scverity of §laims
incurred but not yet reported, changes in the timing of the reporting of losses from the loss date to the netification
date, and expected cosis to setle unpaid claims. We also monitor the reasonableness of the judgments thade in the
prior year’s estimates and adjust current year assumplions based on that analysis.
:

For the years ended Tunre 30, 2008. 2007 and 2006, respectively. insurance and claims expense wasi$4 1,495,
$41,780 and $58,088 and was included in cost of operations and general and administrative expenses inthe
consolidated statements of income.

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective July 1, 2005, we adopted SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment (“SFAS No. 123R”).
SFAS No. 123R revises SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock Based Compensation, and supersedes APP Opinion
No. 25 {"APB No. 257), Accounting for Stock Issued to Emplovees. and its related interpretations. SFA§ No. 123R
requires that all share-based payments be recognized in the consolidated financial statements based on thelr grant
date fair values. Under SFAS No. 123, share-based compensation expense is recognized over the periofl the
recipient is required to perform the services in exchange for the award (presumptively the vesting periofl). As
permitted by SFAS No. 123R. we value awards with graded vesting as single awards and recognize thekelated
compensalion expense using a straight-line attribution method.  SFAS No. 123R also amends SFAS Ni. 93,
Statement of Cash Flows, L0 require that excess tax benefits be reported as tinancing cash inflows, rathgr than as a
reduction of taxes paid, which is included within operating cash flows.

We adopted SFAS No. 123R using the modified prospective application. Accordingly. prior period amounts
have not heen restated. Under this application, we are required to record compensation expense pursuari to SFAS
No. 123R for all awards granted after the date of adoption and for the unvested portion of previously g‘anled
awards that remain outstanding at the date of adoption.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, we used the intrinsic value method as prescribed by APB?ZS and thus
recognized no compensation expense for options granted with excrcise prices equal to the fair market v&lue of our
common stock on the date of grant.

Adbvertising and Promotion

We expense advertising and promotion costs as incurred and these costs are included as a compongnt of general
and administrative expenses. Advertising and promotion costs for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 hnd 2006
were $944, S128 and $298, respeclively.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of chmmon
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted carnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period and potentially dilutive cordmon stock
cquivalents. Potential common stock equivalents that have been issued by us relale to both oulslandmgklock options
and restricted stock awards and are determined using the treasury stock method.

Deferred Loan Cosfs )
Deferred loan costs are being amortized over the term of the related debt using the elfective-interedt method.

Accumulated amortization was $10.293 and $8,590 at June 3(, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Amorliza’ion expense
was $1,703, $1,945 and $4,270 for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Appraximately
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$829, $1,068 and $3,211 of the amortization expense for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, is related to
usamortized loan costs written off due to term loan prepayments (Note 6).

Derivatives

SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended, establishes
accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments and for hedging activities. It requires that alt
derivative instruments be recognized as either assets or liabilities and measured at fair value. 1f the derivative is
designated as a fair value hadge, the changes in the fair value of the derivative and of the hedged item attributable to
the hedged risk are recognized in earnings. If the derivative is designated as a cash flow hedge, the effective
portions of changes in the fair value of the derivative are recorded in other comprehensive income {loss) and are
recognized in the income statement when the hedged item affects earnings. Ineffective portions of changes in the
fair value of cash flow hedges are recognized currently in earnings. For a detailed description of the derivative
instruments we use, our objectives for using them and related supplemental information required by SFAS No. 133,
see Note 7.

Income Tarxes

The liability method is used in accounting for income taxes as required by SFAS No. 109, Accounting for
Income Taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for operating income and tax
credit carryforwards and for the future tax consequences atiributable to the differences between the {inancial
statement carrying amounts of existing asseis and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and
liabilitics are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected 10 be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a
change in tax rates is reccognized in the results of operations in the period that includes the enactment date.

Recent Accounting Prorouncements

In September 2006, the FASDB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measturements. SFAS No. 157 defines fair
value, establishes a measurement framework and expands disclosure requirements. SFAS No. 157 does not require
any new fair value measurements but does apply to assets and liabilities that are required to be recorded at fair value
pursuant to other accounting standards. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15,
2007. We adopted SFAS No. 157 on July 1, 2008 and do not expect the standard to have a material effect on our
consolidated financial statements,

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities, including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115. SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to
measure al fair value many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value that are not currently required
to be measured. Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected are reported
in earnings. SFAS No. 159 does not affect any existing accounting literature that requires certain assets and
liabilities to be carried at fair value. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007.
We adopted SFAS No. 159 on July 1, 2008 and do not expect the standard 1o have a material effect on our
consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), Business Combinations. SFAS No. 14]1(R) will
significantly change the accounting for business combinations in a number of areas including the treatment of
contingent consideration, conlingencies, acquisition costs, and restructuring costs. In addition, under SFAS No.
141R, changes in deferred tax assct valuation allowances and acquired income tax uncertainties in a business
combination afier the measurement period will impact income 1ax expense. SFAS No. 141(R) is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2008 and ecarly adoption is not permitied. SFAS No. 141(R} will impact our
consolidated financial statements if we are party to a business combination that closes after the pronouncement has
been adopted.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements, an amendment of ARB No. 51. SFAS No. 160 will change the accounting and reporting for minority
interests, which will be recharacterized as noncontrolling interests and classified as a component of equity. This
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new consolidation method will significantly change the accounting for transactions with minority intergst

holders. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. We are currenlly evaluating
the ettects of No. 160, but do not expect the standard to have a material effect on our consolidated financial
statements,

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Headging
Activities. SFAS No. 161 is intended to improve financial reporting about derivative instruments and hgdging
activitics by requiring enhanced disclosures to enable investors to better understand how and why an esgity uses
derivative instruments, how they are accounted for under SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative In#riuments and
Hedging Activities, and rclated interpretations, and their effects on an entity’s financial position, financial
performance, and cash flows. It is cffective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim fgriods
beginning after November 15, 2008, with early application encouraged. We are currently evaluating thg effects of
SFAS No. 161, but do not expect the standard to have a material eftect on our consolidated (inancial stgtements.

3. Change in Capital Structure and Initial Public Offering

On July 1, 2005, we reincorporated in Delaware by merging Pike Holdings. Inc., a North Carolinat':orporalion,
with and into a newly-created wholly-owned subsidiary, Pike Electric Corporation. Each share of Pike Holdings.
Inc. common stock was converled into 14,76 shares of Pike Electric Corporation common stock with a par value of
$0.001 per share. All common stock and per share amounts for all periods presented in the accompanyihg
consolidaied financial statements have been restated to reflect the effect of this conversion. '

On August 1, 2005, we completed our [PO of 10,000 shares of common stock, receiving approximmely
$121,950 in net proceeds afier deducting underwriting discounts, commissions, offering expenses and fxe {ec for the
termination of the management agreement with Lindsay Goldberg. Our common stock began trading of the New
York Stock Exchange on Tuly 27, 2005. All of the net proceeds were used to repay long-term debt. 4
4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is comprised of the following:

Es tlmated Useful Jupe 3,

it s s

26 701

'0' 4

Tutal

Property 'md equipment, net $ 229119 $... 267 40

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $32,.878, $36,593 and 532,432,
respectively.

Expenses for maintenance and repairs of property and equipment were $36,097, $39,362 and 541 $O4 for the
years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. |

¥
Amounts reported as loss on sale and impairment of property and equipment relate primarily to thé sale of
aging, damaged or excess flect equipment. The carrying value of asscts held for sale was $633 and 5485 at June 30,
2008 and 2007, respectively, and is included in prepaid expenses and other in the consolidated balancesheets.
Substantially all of the assets held for sale at June 30, 2008 arc ¢xpeceted (0 be sold during the first quaﬁter of fiscal
2009.
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5. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The carrying amount of goodwill was $94,402 at both June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively. We have no
intangibles with indefinite lives other than goodwill,

Other amortizable intangible asscts are comprised of:

Customer Customer Non-Compete
Relationships Arrangements Agreements Total
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

T R N R e S T
Accumulated amortization 6,211y (3, 658) (6 990) (6,990 (2,444) (1,833) (15,645) (12,481)
N intangible’aseis” 37.000839,562° §" L3036 S 3667540

[Gross'erryingvaue. -+

D65 543,209

All of the above amonizable intangible assels were acquired in the Red Simpson, Inc. acquisition which
occurred in fiscal 2005. Customer relationships have estimated lives of 30 years and non-compete agreements have
estimated lives of up to nine years. Amorlization expense related to intangible assets for the years ended June 30,
2008, 2007 and 2006 was $3,164, $3,198 and $5,150, respectively.

Estimated future amortization expense related o intangible assets is as follows:

Yeags !ulded,lrune 30, Amﬂgl}t }

6. Debt

Debt consisted of the following at June 30, 2008 and 2007:

The total $140,500 balance of long-term debt matures in fiscal year 2013,

On July 1, 2004, we entered into a secured bank credit agreement (“Credit Agreement™), The Credit Agreement
currently consists of: (i} a2 $300,000 term loan due July 1, 2012, (i) a $150,000 term loan due December 10, 2012
and (iii) a $90,000 revolving facility that matures July 1, 2010, We have incurred $13,072 in fees related to this
agreement that are being amortized as part of inierest expense, using the effective interest method, over the lives of
the respective loans and facility.




The term loans bear interest at a variable rate at our election of either (a) LIBOR plus a margin ranging from
1.50% to 1.75% or (b) the Alternate Base Rate, defined as the greater of the Prime Rate or the Federal Funds
Effective Rate plus 0.50%, plus a margin ranging from 0.50% to 0.75%. The margins are applied hased on our
leverage ratio, which is computed quarterly. At June 30, 2008, our interest rate for both term loans was#4.00%. We
are subject to a commitment fee of 0.50% and letter of credit fees between 1,75% and 2.25% based on dur leverage
ratio, g

Eftective December 2007, we entered into two separate inlerest rate swap agreements. The first a secment had
a notional amount of $60.0 million, an effective date ot December 13, 2007 and an expiration date of December 13,
2009. The second agreement had a notional amount of $40.0 million, an effective date of December 19 2007 and
an expiration date of December 19. 2009. Under both swap agreements, we pay a fixed rate of 3.99% 3&(1 receive a
rate equivalent to the thirty-day LIBOR, adjusted monthiy, Based on our current leverage ratio, these sgap
agreements effectively fix the interest rate at 5.49% for $100.0 millien of our term debt for the remmm& terms of
the swaps. '

Advances made under the revolving facility bear interest at a variable rate at our election of either @) LIBOR
plus a margin ranging from 1.50% to 2.00% or (b) the Aliernate Base Rate as defined, plus a margin raffing from
0.50% to 1.00%. The margins are applied based on our leverage ratio, which is computed quarterly. The borrowing
availability under the revolving credit facility was $66,360 as of June 30, 2008 (after giving effect to ougstanding
standby letters of credit of $23,640).

The Credit Agreement is secured by substantially all of our assets and contains a number of affirmative and
restrictive covenants including limitations on mergers, consolidations and dissolutions, sales of assets, ipvestments
and acquisitions, indebtedness and liens, restricted payments, and a requirement (o maintain certain fingpcial ratios.
Pursuant to the terms of the Credit Agreement, we may prepay any loans under the agreement in whole dr in part
without penalty. We made paymernts on the term loans in an aggregate amount of $51,000 and $57,500Ckin fiscal
2008 and 2007, respectively. :

Cash paid for interest expense totaled $12,616, $16,134 and $19,640 for the years ended June 30, 2D08, 2007
and 2006, respectively. Interest costs capitalized tor the year ended Tune 30, 2008, 2007 and 2008 were 592, $134
and $188, respectively.

7. Derivative Instruments, QOther Comprehensive Income and Comprehensive Income

4
We have used certain derivative instruments to enhance our ability to manage risk relating to diesc fuel and
interest rate exposure. Derivative instruments are not entered into for trading or speculative purposes. We
document all relationships between derivative instruments and related items, as well as our risk-manag
objectives and strategies for undertaking various derivative transactions. All derivative instruments arejrecorded on
the consolidated balance sheet at their respective fair values in accordance with SFAS 133, as amended,

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to market risk related to changes in interest rates on borrowings under our senior credit facility,
which bears interest based on LIBOR, plus an applicable margin dependent upon a total leverage ralio. We use
derivative financial instruments to manage exposure to fluctuations in interest rates on our senior creditfacility.

During the year ended June 30, 2005, we entered into an interest rate swap and an interest rate cap pgreement
with two banks to manage our interest rate risk, These agreements matured in January 2007, In accordince with the
provisions of SFAS 133, as amended, thesc agreements did not meet the criteria to quality for hedge acgounting and
were marked to market and included on the balance sheet at fair value. We recognized a (loss) gain on ﬁe change in
fair value of the derivatives of ($345) and $86 included in interest expense in the consolidated statemengs of income
for the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively,
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Effective December 2007, we entered into two interest rate swap agreements with a total notional amount of
$100,000 to help manage a portion of our floating-rate debt interest risk. The interest rate swaps qualified for hedge
accounting and were designated as cash flow hedges. As determined in accordance with SFAS 133 as amended,
there was no hedge ineffecliveness for the December 2007 interest rate swaps for fiscal 2008. The interest rate
swaps are marked to markcet and included on the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in the fair values of the swaps
are recorded in other comprehensive income (loss) (“OCI”) and are recognized in the statement of income when the
hedged items affect earnings. The interest rate swaps expire in December 2009. The fair value of the interest rate
swaps at June 30, 2008 was reflected on the balance sheet in accrued expenses and other for $882 and in other
liabilities for $441.

The net derivative inccme (loss) recorded in QCI will be reclassified into earnings over the term of the
underlying cash flow hedge. The amount that will be reclassificd into earnings will vary depending upon the
movement of the underlying interest rates. As interest rates decrease, the charge to earnings will increase.
Conversely, as interest rates increasc, the charge to earnings will decrease.

Diesel Fuel Risk

We have a large fleet of vehicles and equipment that primarily use diesel fuel and, as a resuit, have market risk
for changes in the prices of diesel fuel. If diesel prices rise, our gross profit and operating income would be
negatively affected due (o additional costs that may nol be fully recovered through increases in prices to customers,

We did not elect to apply hedge accounting for our first diesel fuel swap, which was entered into in May 2006
and expired February 2008. This swap was marked 1o market and included on the balance sheet at fair value each
reporting period. Realized and unrealized gainrs and losses were recognized in cost of operations. We recognized a
gain (loss) on the change in fair value of the May 2006 swap of $65, $34 and ($99) that was included in cost of
operations in the consolidated statements of income for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Our second diesel fuel swap, which was entered into in October 2006 and expired February 2008, qualified for
hedge accounting and was designated as a cash flow hedge. This swap was marked to market and inciuded on the
balance sheet at fair value.

The effective portions of changes in the fair value of the swap were recorded in OCI and were recognized in the
statement of income when the hedged item affected carnings. Incffective portions of the change in the fair value of
the cash flow hedge were recognized in cost of operations. During both the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, the
net loss representing cash flow hedge ineffectiveness was immaterial and was recognized in cost of operations in the
consolidated statements of income.

Accumulated OCI

For the interest rate swaps and diesel fuel swap, the following table summarizes the net derivative gains or
losses, net of taxes, deferred into accumulated other comprehensive loss and reclassified to earnings for the years
indicated below.

For the Years Ended June 30,

2008 ' 2007

De[en*al of net de nvallve loss in accumulated other
comprehcnswc loss
ectassitiintion Gf nel denvalive 1088 (0 ingome: T
Net accumulated derivative loss at end of year 3 (806) %

The estimated net amount of the existing losses in other comprehensive income at June 30, 2008 expected to be
reclassified inlo net earnings with the next twelve months is $551. This amount was computed using the fair value
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of the cash flow hedges at Junc 30, 2008 and will differ from actual reclassifications from OCI 10 nct edrnings
during fiscal 2009.

For the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, there werce no material reclassifications to earnings due to
hedged firm commitments no longer deemed probable or due to hedged forecasted lransactions that haq not occurred
by the end of the originally specified time period.

Comprehensive Income

The components of comprehensive income were as follows for the periods presented below:

For the Years Ended June 30,
2108 2007 !

Diesel lllL] cash ﬂow hedge, net of income
taxes of $4 and (‘%4) mq[uecuvel i

“inie |
N TaRESOL 3510 . ' g
Comprehensive income $ 19, 45] b 18.349 )

8. Income Taxes
Income tax expense from operations consisted of the following:

Years Ended june 30,

2008 2007

Deferred

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying ampunts of
assets and liahilitics for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used {or income tax purposes. Significant
components ol our deferred tax liabilities and assets are as follows: !

Deferred 1ax ligbilites:
[ Taxover hookidepreciaiion

B ATAS |

Tax over book amornzauon (l 1,330);
[~ Qher . T : Gt (A1) peide {399
Total deferred tax liabilities {72.958) (78.671)
Delefred (ax 4880182 4 RO N

Delerred Lompensanon 3.336 50234
| Selt-ingurance;acceial B Ty - 14,061 - . - 13,46

Accrued vacation 2,223 2277
FoOther™ - ut cn A s L - B4R e 4B
lolal deferrcd tax assets ‘ N 25,918

SRR

The balance sheet classification ot deferred income taxes is as follows:
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June 30,

{CALToRLasSers, - 2
Non current ll&blllllGS

The differences between the income tax expense and the amounts computed by applying the statutory federal
income tax rate to earnings before income taxes are as follows:

&tutmy TG

State income taxes, -ncl of
fedenl benefit ' _ 1 393 4 2% 1,269 4.2% 2, 352 4.2%

Years Fnded June 30,

Net income taxexpcm b 12983 39 l% $ 11,957 39.4% $ 22324 39.4%

Cash paid for income taxes totaled $23,971, 38,041 and $21,233 for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and
2006, respectively.

Effective July 1, 2007, Pike adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48™). FIN 48 clarifics
the accounting for uncertainty in income taxcs recognized in the financial statements by prescribing a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken
in a tax return, The pronouncement also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties,
accounting in inlerim periods, disclosure and transition,

The adoption of FIN 4& did not impact the total liabilities or stockholders’ equity of Pike. At the date of
adoption Pike had $558 in liabilities associated with unrecognized tax benefits. There were no changes in
unrecognized tax benefits during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, Substantially all of the unrecognized tax
benefils as of June 30, 2008 would impact our effective tax rate if recognized.

As permitted under FIN 48, we have elected to continue to recognize interest and penalties related to income tax
matters in the income tax provision. As of June 30, 2008, there were no significant amounts accrued for interest or
penaliies related to uncertain tax positions.

Subsequent to June 30, 2008, the Internal Revenue Service completed its examinations of Pike's federal income
tax returns through the year ended June 30, 2007, As a result, we will reduce our unrecognized tax benefits by
approximately $400 in the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2008, but do not expect any significant impact on our
statement of income. Various years remain subject to examination by state taxing authorities.

9. Employee Benefit Plans

We sponsor a defined contribution plan that covers all full-time employees who have completed a minimum of
two moaths of employment. Contributions relating to the defined contribution plan will be made based upon the
plan’s provisions. Additional amounts may be contributed at the option of our board of directors, Our contributions
were $1,630, $2,151 and $2.095 for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
10. Stock-Based Compensation

Overview

In connection with our IPO, we adopted the 2005 Omnibus Compensation Plan (the “2005 Plan"”) in July 2005.
We adopted the 2008 Omnibus Compensation Plan (the “2008 Plan” and, together with the 2005 Plan, the “Omnibus

48




Plans™) in fiscal year 2008 in anticipation of future compensation-related equity awards. The OmnibusiPlans
authorize our Board of Directlors to grant various types of awards to directors, officers, employees and gonsultants,
including stock options intended o qualily as incentive stock options under Section 422 of the InternalRevenue
Code of 1986, as amended. nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, restricted
stock units, performance units, cash incentive awards, deferred share units and other equity-based or equity-related
awards. To date all equity awards under the 2005 Plan have consisted of nonqualified stock options aml restricted
stock. No awards under the 2008 Plan have been granted to daic.

Subject to adjustment as provided below, the aggregate number of shares of common stock that may be issued
pursuant to awards granted under the 2005 Plan is 1,750, of which the maximum number of shares thagmay be
delivered pursuant to incentive stock options granted and restricted stock awards is 500 and 450, respedtively.
Subject 10 adjustment as provided below, the aggregate number of shares of common stock that may bd issued
pursuant to awards granted under the 2008 Plan is 2,500, of which the maximum number of shares thagmay be
delivered pursuant to incentive stock options granted and restricled stock awards is 500 and 500, respestively, We
have a policy ol issuing new shares to satisty option exercises.

Under both Omnibus Plans, the maximum number of shares of common stock with respect (o whii;awards
may be granted to any ¢lipible individual in any fiscal year is 600. If an award granted under either OGminibus Plan is
forfeited., or otherwise expires, terminates or is canceled without the delivery of shares, then the sharesgovered by
the forfeited, cxpired, terminated or canceled award will again be available to be delivered pursuant to awards under
the applicable Omnibus Plan.

We also maintain two stock option plans that were adopted in 2002 (the “2002 Plans™), under whigh stock
oplions were granted to key employees, officers and directors. Option grants under the 2002 Plans weike at a price of
no less than the fair market value of the underlying stock at the date of grant, generally vest over a foug-year period,
and have a term of ten years. Cerlain options granted under the 2002 Plans, in accordance with their tgrms, fully
vested upon completion of the IPO transaction in August 2005. We do not intend 1o make additional g#nts under
the 2002 Plans. :

We recorded non-cash expense related to our stock-based compensation plans of $2,903, $2,629 apd $3.242 for
the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The total income tax benefit associated with non-cash
stock compensation expense was $1,134, $1,027 and $1,266 for the years ended June 30, 2008, and 2087 and 2006,
respectively. As of June 30, 2008, there were 2,973 shares available for future issuance under our stock-based
compensation plans. i

Stock Options

For purposes of determining compensation expense [or stock option awards, the fair value of eaclwoption award
is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The key assumptions l*SBd in the
Black-Schotes model for options granted during fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 werce as follows:

Years ended June 30,

2008 207 2006)
Rigk-free interest rate 321%-3.53% 4.64%-4.92% 4.06% - 5P:
Expected volatitity ~ ~ - 0:36-038 " 029:030.. 0 " 0298
Expected life 6.0-65years  50-6.5 years 6.5 y&

The dividend yicld assumption is based on our current intent not to issue dividends. The risk-freefinterest rate is
based on the U.S. Treasury raie for the expected life at the time of grant. We have limited trading hist‘ry beginning
July 27, 2005; as such our expecied volatility is based on the average long-term implied volatilities ot'beer
companics. Also, due o our limited trading history, we are using the “simplitied method” to calculatelexpected
holding periods as allowed under Lhe provisions of SAB 107, which represents the period of time that $ptions
granted are expected to be outstanding. i
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A summary of stock option activity for the year ended June 30, 2008, is presented below:

Weighted Weighted Aggregate

Average Awerage Intrinsic

Exercise Remaining Value
Options Price Life (years)

Options vested and expected to vest,
June 30, 2008 2,518 $ 976 6.1 $ 17,82

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted during fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $6.65,
$7.06 and $5.53, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 was
$2,695, $3,722 and $10,717, respectively.

As of June 30, 2008, there was $4,045 of unrecognized compensation expense related to outstanding stock
options which is expected o be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.6 years,

Cash received from oplion exercises for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $1,008, $1,952 and
$3,842, respectively. The actual tax benefit realized from option exercises totaled $1,100, $1,500 and $4,024 for the
years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Other Stock-Based Compensation
A summary of non-vested restricted stock activity for the year ended June 30, 2008 is presented below:

Weighted
Awverage Grant-
Shares Date Fair Value

o

As of June 30, 2008, there was $1,637 of unrecognized compensation expense related to non-vested restricted
stock which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.4 years. The total fair value of shares
vested during the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $773, $117 and $23, respectively.

In addition, we recorded non-cash compensation expense of $250 in each of the years ended June 30, 2008,
2007 and 2006, related to an annual bonus of unrestricted and fully vested shares ot common stock granted to our
Chief Executive Officer pursuant (o his employment agreement.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In September 2005, we adopted an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”) that was approved by
stockholders in December 2005. Under the ESPP, shares of our common stock are purchased during offerings
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commencing on January 1 of each year. The first offering period under the ESPP commenced on Janugry 1, 2006.
Shares are purchased at three-month intervals at 95% of the fair market value on the last trading day offeach three-
month purchase period. Employees may purchase shares having a value not exceeding 20% of their anfiual
compensation, or $25, whichever is less. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, employees purchased 36
shares at an average price of $15.51 per share. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, employees purchased 42
shares at an average price of $16.45 per share. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, employees 'purchascd 24
shares at an average price of $19.10 per share. At June 30, 2008, there were 399 shares of common stafk reserved
tor future issuance under the ESPP.

11. Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share:

Years Fnded June 30,

2008 2007 2006

5

o
o3}
&
|
=)
o

Net income $ 20249 $ 18.357

S R RS T

Polenua] common stock arising from stock options and

restrcted stock ) 856 950 i 1.229

S 0.55

0.60 5 1.07

$

Dlluted carnings per share

Outstanding oplions to purchase approximately 444, 298 and 973 shares of common stock were extluded from
the calculation of diluted carnings per sharc for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respec::'ely, because
they were anti-dilutive.

12. Leases '

We lease various technology hardware, real estate used as satellite oftices and storage facilities, amd two
atrplanes under operating leases with terms ranging from one (o ten years. We also rent various vehicleg and
equipment on short-term. month-to-month leases. Many of these leases have automatic renewal featurgs and we
have no material escalation clauses, At June 30, 2008, the future minimum lease payments under the oﬁeratmg
leases are as folflows:

Rent expense related to operating leases was approximately $2,856, 83,083 and $2,723 for the yeats ended June
30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. We do not have any leases that are classified as capital leases fér any of the
periods presented in these financial statements.
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13. Deferred Compensation

In connection with the acquisition of Red Simpson on July 1, 2004, we agreed to pay, as part of the purchase
price, $26,000 in deferred compensation over a two-year period. We also agreed to pay an additional $29,100 in
deferred compensation over four years if the employees continued their employmeat.

In May 2005, the deferred compensation plan was amendced to ¢liminate the future service requirement and
fully vest the benefits under the plan, The amendment provides that, if an employee continues to be employed, dies,
becomes disabled, retircs, or is terminated for other than “cause” as defined in the amendment, the amounts under
the deferred compensation plan will be paid out in accordance with the original four-year payment term. Generally
under the amendment, if an employee voluntarily terminates or is terminated for cause, then any remaining unpaid
amounts under the deferred compensation plan are paid out on the fifteenth anniversary (2019) of the initial payment
date plus interest, The interest rate is to be determined by us based upon a risk-free interest rate plus a margin
reflecting an appropriate risk premium. Generally under the amendment, if an employee is terminated for “specified
cause,” as defined in the amendment, then all unpaid amounts under the deferred compensation plan are forfeited.

For the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, due (o for{eitures, we recorded deferred compensation income of
$620 and $633, respectively. Also during the year ended June 30, 2007, as part of a settlement agreement relating to
a non-compete agreement, we recorded a $2,537 reduction in the deferred compensation liability (see Note 16), No
deferred compensation expense or income was recorded for the year ended June 30, 2006. Accretion of interest on
deferred compensation liabilities was $1,243, $1,295 and $678 for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, and is included in interest expense on the consolidated statements of income.

The following table scts forth the approximate amounts of deferred compensation remaining to be paid in each
of the five years ended June 30 and thereafter:

s e 3009 ]

14. Financial Instruments
Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments, which potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk, consist primarily of accounts
receivable and work completed not bitled. Due to the high-credit quality of our customers, credit risk relating to
accounts receivable is limited and credit losses have generally been within management’s estimates. We perform
periodic credit evaluations of our customers’ financial condition, but generally do not require collateral. Duke
Energy accounted for approximately 19.9%, 15.6%, and 14.7% of our total revenues for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, We had accounts receivable from one customer of $13,433 and $9,902 at June 30, 2008 and 2007,
respectively.

At June 30, 2008 and 2007, we had cash in excess of federally insured limits on deposit with a financial institution
of approximately $11,236 and $1,367, respectively.
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Off-Balance Sheet Risk

For both June 30, 2008 and 2007, we had letters of credit outstanding wotaling $23,640. as required &y our
workers’ compensation, general liability and vehicle liability insurance providers and to the surety bond holder.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
1
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable apprdximate fair
values due to the short-term nature of these instruments. The carrying value of our debt approximates {#r value
based on the market-determined, variable interest rates. Derivative carrying amounts also approximate f8ir values as
the carrying amounts are determined based upon market rates. !

15. Related Party Transactions and Agreements
Stockholders Agreement

We, LGB Pike 11 LLC, an affiliated company, and certain other stockholders are parties to a stockhdlders‘
agreement. The stockholders’ agreement covers matters of restrictions on transfers of common stock, cofporate
governance and registration rights, as described below. :
Restrictions on Transfer of Shares. Under the terms of the stockholders’ agreement, each stockholder agreed
not to transfer or sell any shares of common stock unless such transfer or sale is pursuant to an effecyve
registration statement or unless consented (o by us.

1
Corporate Gevernance. The stockholders” agreement provides that J. Eric Pike, our current Chairmgn, Chief
Executive Officer and President (“CEQ™), will have the right to occupy one seat on the board of direztors so long
as he is the CEO and controls at least 1,322 shares of our common stock, So long as Mr, Pike has thgright to a
seat ont the board of directors, then LGB Pike II LLC and any affiliate of LGB Pike I LLC agrees towote in
favor of Mr, Pike’s election as a director.

Registration Rights. The stockholders’ agreement provides that LGB Pike II LLC and its affiliates and the other
stockholders party to the siockholders’ agreement. including certain of our named executive ofticers,;have
registration rights with respect 1o their stock. LGB Pike II LLC and its affiliates have the right to reqfire us to
effect additional registration statements, or “demand regisirations,” covering shares of our common gock they
hold. On September 7. 2006. we filed such a shelf registration statement on Form S-3 registering 8,080 shares of
our common stock held by LGB Pike [1 LLC. This shelf registration statement was declared effectivg by the SEC
on September 20, 2006. In addition to its rights with respect to demand registrations, each of LGB Pke I1 LLC
and its affiliates and the other stockholders party to the stockholders’ agreement have *piggyback” rggistration
rights. If we propose to register any of its securities for sale for its own account, other than a registraon in
connection with an employee benefit or similar plan or an exchange offer. we will be required to givé each party
1o the stockhoiders” agreement the opportunity to participate in such registration,

16. Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation

We are from time to time party to various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary
course of business. These actions typically seek, among other things, compensation for alleged personal injury,
workers’ compensation, employment discrimination, breach of contract. property damage, punitive damgges, civil
penalties or other 10sses, or injunctive or declaratory reliet, With respect 10 all such lawsuits, claims and:
proceedings, we accrue reserves when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount 0(&)58 can be
reasonably estimated. We do not believe that any of these proceedings, separately or in the aggregate, wbu!d be
expected to have a material adverse effect on our results of operations or {inancial position.
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On September 6, 2006, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with a former employee relating 10
litigation proceedings initiated by the Company (o enforce the employee’s non-compete agreement entered into in
connection with the Company’s acquisition of Red Simpson. Pursuant to this settlement agreement, the former
employee entered into a revised non-compete agreement, reduced the amount and extended the payment terms of
certain deferred compensation liabilities, and forfeited certain shares of restricted stock. Accordingly, the carrying
amount of the previously recorded non-compete agreement of $3,551 was removed, the deferred compensation
liability was reduced by $2,537 and $293 of stock compensation expense related to the forfeited restricted stock
previously recognized was reversed.

Perforinance Bonds
In certain circumstances we are required to provide performance bonds in connection with our contractual
commitmeats. We have ind2mnified the surety for any expenses that may be paid out under these performance
bonds. At June 30, 2008, we had an outstanding letter of credit of $4,000 to provide collateral o the surety. At June
30, 2008 the total amount of outstanding performance bonds was approximately $34,639.
17. Quarterly Data—Unaudited
The following table presents the quarterly operating results for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007:

Quarter Ended

September 30, December 31, March 31, June 30,

e,

Bas:ceérmngsgershare” s s .15 $ 0.3 3
Dinited earnigns por chan A8

Earnings per share amounts for each quarter are required to be computed independently. As a result their sum
may not equal the total year basic and diluted earnings per share.

18. Subsequent Event

On September 1, 2008, we acquired substantizally all of the assets of EDS, an affiliate of The Shaw Group, for
$24,250 in cash, subject to a working capital adjustment, plus the assumption of certain operating liabilities, EDS
provides engineering, design, procurement and construction management services on distribution and transmission
powerlines and substations, and also performs maintenance and construction services on distribution and
transmission powerlines and substations. The acquisition will be accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

There are no changes in accountants or disagreements with accountants on accounting principles and financial
disclosures required to be disclosed in this ltem 9.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES ,
¥

As of the end of the period covered by this report. an evaluation was performed under the supervisfon and with
the participation of our management, including the chief executive ofticer (“CEO™), and chief financial otficer
{“CFO™), of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our “disclosure controls and procedures™ (hs defined in
Rule 13a-15(¢) of the Sccurities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act™))} pursuant to Rule 13a-15{b) of the
Exchange Act. Based on that evaluaiion, our management, including the CIZ0 and CFO, concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures are effective for the purpose of providing reasonable assurance thatthe
information required to be disclosed in the reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act (i) is recofded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SIXC’s rules and forms an4 (ii) is
accumulaled and communicated to our management, including our CEO and CFO, as appropriate (o allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosures.

See page 3! for “Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.” See page 3B for the
“Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.”

There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting during tiscal 2008 that hds materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting, ;

1
2

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable, :

Part 111

-

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

For information with respect to our executive officers, see “Executive Officers” section of the Progy Statement
for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which is incorporated hercin by reference. For informat#on with
respect Lo our Directors, se¢ the “Proposal 1: Election of Directors” section of the Proxy Statement for fhe 2008
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which is incorporated herein by reference. For information with respéct to
Section 16 reports, sce the “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” section of thefProxy
Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which is incorporated herein by reference. Fof information
with respect to the Audit Commitiec of the Board of Directors, see the “Board of Dircctors Int‘ormaliol— Board
Commitices” seclion of the Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which is i
herein by reference. ‘

orporated

We have adopted a wrillen code of conduct, which is intended to qualify as a “code of ethics” willfin the
meaning of Item 406 of Regulation 5-K of the Exchange Act (the “Code of Ethics™). The Code of Ethits applies to
our Chief Executive Officer. Chief Financial Oflicer and Principal Accounting Officer and any other prson
performing similar functions. The Code of Ethics is available on our website at www.pike.com. We infend to
disclose any substantive amendments to, or waivers from, our Code of Ethics on our website orin a reﬁorl on Form
8-K. We have filed as exhibits to this Form 10-K the officer certifications required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act, and we submitted the required annual CEQ certification to the NYSE in fiscal 2008 wimoui any
qualifications. '

There have been no material changes to the procedures through which stockholders may recomme(nd HOMinees
Lo our Board of Direclors since October 25, 2007, which is the date of our last proxy slalement. :
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

For information with respect to executive and director compensation, see the “Executive Compensation,”
“Compensation Committee [nterlocks and Insider Participation,” “Report of the Compensation Committee” and
“The Board of Directors — Director Compensation” sections of the Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, which are incorporated herein by reference,

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

For information with respect to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management, see the
“Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” section of the Proxy Statement for the 2008
Annmual Meeting of Stockholders, which are incorporated herein by reference. For information with respect to
securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans, see the “Securities Authorized for Issuance
under our Equity Compensation Plan” section of the Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders,
which is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

For information with respect to certain relationships and related transactions, see the “Certain Relationships and
Related Party Transactions™ section of the Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which is
incorporated herein by reference. For certain information with respect to director independence, see the disclosures
in the “The Board of Directors — Director Independence” section of the Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual
Meeling of Stockholders reparding director independence, which are incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

For information with respect to principal accountant fees and services, see the “Ratification of Appointment of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” section of the Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, which is incorporaled herein by reference.

Part IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
a) Financial Information

(1) Financial Statements: See “Index to Consolidated Financial Statements” in Part 11, Item 8 of this
Form 10-K.

{(2) Financial Statement Schedule; See “Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounls™ of this Form
10-K.

(3)  Exhibits
See (b) below,
b) Exhibits

See Exhibit Index. on page 59.

56



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requircments of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934, the mgislram has

duly caused this report Lo be signed on its behalf by the undersigned. thereunto duly authorized.

Date: September 5, 2008

PIKE ELECTRIC CORPORATION

(Registrant)

By: _/s/]. Eric Pike

!
H

}

i

J. Eric Pike

3

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Preéidenl

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed tj;low by the

following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature

Title

Date

fs/ ). Eric Pike

J. Eric Pike

fs/ Anthony K. Slater

Anthony K, Slater

/s/ Gary D. Waldman

Gary D, Waldman

{s/ Charles E, Bayless

Charles E. Bayless

/s! Adam P, Godfrey

Adam P. Godfrey

fs/ James R. Helvey 11

James R. Helvey III

/sf Robert 1. Lindsay

Robert D, Lindsay

s/ Daniel J. Sullivan

Daniel T, Sullivan

fs/ Louis IF. Terhar

Louis F, Terhar

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer

and President

Chief Financial Officer

Chicf Accounting Officer

Director

Director

Director

Director

Direclor

Director
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SCHEDULE II
PIKE ELECTRIC CORPORATION
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2008, 2007 AND 2006

Balance at Charged to Balance at
Beginning Revenue or End of
Description of Period Expense Deductions Period

(in thousands)

Year ended June 30, 2008

A AR IR
35,675 40,010

ORI e
(36 390) (2) '

Atlowance tor bt ‘g“ﬁzi ﬁccount
lnsurance claim reserve

TSRS (Lo 3 T ]

Insurémce claim n:se'rve 33353 56,245 = (42 923) (2) 35,675

{1) Represents uncollectible accounts written off, net of recoveries.

(2) Represents claim payments for self-insured claims.
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EXHIBIT
NO.

2.1

31

3.2

4.1

10.1*

10.2*

10.3*

10.4%

10.5*

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

EXHIBIT INDEX

DESCRIPTION

Asset Purchase Agreement dated June 18, 2008 by and among Pike Eicctric, Inc., ShawiEnergy Delivery
Services, Inc., Pike Electric Corporation and The Shaw Group, Inc., as amended on Audusl 14, 2008
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 on our Form 8-K filed September 3, 2008) ¢

Certificate of Incorporation of Pike Electric Corporation {Incorporated by reference to Iixhlbn 3.1 onour
Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed July 11, 2005)

Bylaws of Pikc Electric Corporation {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 on our R@nsmmon
Statement on Form S-1/A filed July 1. 2005)

Specimen Stock Certificate (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 on our Reglslrauoé Statement on
Form S-1/A filed July 22, 2005)

2005 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (lncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 on our Reglslrauon
Statement on Form S-1/A filed June 3, 2005) !

2002 Stock Option Plan A (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 on our RLgISU'a[IOtI Statcment on
Form S-1/A filed June 3, 2005) ‘

2002 Stock Option Plan B (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 on our Reglslranoh Statement on
Form S-1/A filed June 3, 2005)

2005 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 15 on our
Registration Statement on Form S§-1/A filed July 22, 2005) i

2008 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 bn our Form 8-K
filed December 11, 2007) '

Amended and Restaled Credit Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2004, among Pike Holdings, Inc., Pike
Electric, Inc. and the lenders party thercto (Incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 10.4 ontur Registration
Statement on Form S-1/A filed June 3, 2005)

First Amendment to the Amended and Restaied Credit Agreement, dated as of Decembeg 10, 2004, among
Pike Holdings, Inc., Pike Electric, Inc. and the lenders party thereto (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.5 on our Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed June 3, 2005) :

Second Amendment 1o the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement. dated as of June 2&. 2005, among
Pike Holdings. Inc., Pike Electric, Ing. and the lenders party thereto (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.11 on our Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed July 11, 2005)

Third Amendment to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of Decembgr 9, 2005, among
Pike Holdings, Inc., Pike Electric, Inc. and the lenders party thereto (Incorporated by reffrence o Exhibit
10.1 on our Form 8 K filed December 13, 2005) i

Fourth Amendment to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated February 28.‘2006 among Pike
Electric Corporation, Pike Electric, Inc. and the lenders party thereto (lncorporated by ra‘ercnce to Exhibil
10.1 on our Form 10-Q (iled May 12, 2006) ‘

FFifth Amendment to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of Decemb ; 9, 2005, among
Pike Holdings, Inc., Pike Electric, Inc. and the lenders party thereto (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 on our Form $-K filed November 16, 2006)

Revolving Commilment Increase Agreement, dated December 12, 2005, by and betweerl Pike Electric, Inc.

and Bank of America, N.A. (Incorporated by relerence (o Exhibit 10.2 on our Form 8-K filed December 13,

2005) i

Revolving Commitment Increase Agreement, dated December 12, 2005, by and betweea Pike Electric, Inc,

and First Tennessee Bank. National Association (Incorporated by reference o Exhibit 1.3 on our Form 8-
K filed December 13, 2005) '
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13.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21*

10.22*

10.23*

10.24*

10.25*

21.1
231
31.1

31.2

32.1

Stockholders Agreement, dated April 18, 2002, among Pike Holdings, Inc., LGB Pike LLC, certain
rollover holdars and certain management stockholders (Incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 10.6 on our
Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed June 3, 2005)

Addendum, dated June 13, 2005, 1o the Stockholders Agreement dated April 18, 2002, among Pike
Holdings, Inc., LGB Pike LLC, certain rollover holders and certain management stockholders
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 on our Registration Statement on Form 8-1/A filed July 11,
2005)

Amendment, dated Juty 21, 2005, to the Stockholders Agreement dated April 18, 2002, among Pike
Electric Corporation as successor to Pike Holdings, Inc., LGB Pike I LLC as successor to LGB Pike LLC,
cerlain rollover holders and certain management stockholders (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16
on our Regisiration Statement on Form S-1/A filed July 22, 2005)

Management Advisory Services Agreement, dated April 18, 2002, between Pike Eleciric, Inc. and
Goldberg Lindsay & Co. LLC (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 on our Registration Statement on
Form S-1/A 1iled June 3, 2005)

Amendment Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2004, 10 the Management Advisory Services Agreement, dated
April 18, 2002, between Pike Electric, Inc. and Goldberg Lindsay & Co. LLC (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.8 on our Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed June 3, 2005)

Letter Agreement, dated as of March 15, 2002, between Joc B. Pike and LGB Pike LLC (Incorporated by
reference (0 Exhibit 10.10 on our Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed June 3, 2005)

Termination Agreement, dated as of June 23, 2005, between Pike Electric, Inc. and Goldberg Lindsay &
Co. LLC (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 on our Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed
July 11, 2005)

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of July 20, 2005, between J. Eric Pike and Pike
Electric Corporation (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 on our Registration Statement on Form S-
1/A filed July 22, 2005)

Employment Agreement, dated October 10, 2006, by and between James R. Fox, Pike Electric, Inc. and
Pike Electric Corporation (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 on our Form 8-K filed October 10,
2006)

Employment Agreement, dated October 10, 2006, by and between Anthony K. Slater, Pike Electric, Inc.
and Pike Electric Corporation (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 on our Form 8-K filed October 10,
2006)

Employmen!. Agreement, dated November 20, 2006, by and between Audie Simmons, Pike Electric, Inc.
and Pike Electric Corporation (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 on our Form 8-K filed November
27, 2006)

Separation Agrecment and General Release, dated September 27, 2007, by and between Mark P. Thomson
and Pike Electric, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 on our Form 8-K filed September 27,
2007)

List of subsidiarics of Pike Electric Corporation {filed herewith)
Consent of Ernst & Young LLP (filed herewith)

Certification of Periodic Report by Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14a and
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith)

Certification of Periodic Report by Chief Financial Officer pursuani to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14a and
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed hercwith)

Certification of Periodic Report by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith)

*Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement,

60



Subsidiaries of the Pike Electric Corporation

Pike Elecuric, Inc. (North Carolina)
Pike Equipment and Supply Company (North Carolina)
Red Simpson, LLC (Louisiana)

Exhibit 21.1

LA




Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements of Pike Electric Corporation
(“Pike Electric™) of our reports dated September 4, 2008 with respect to the consolidated financial statements, and
schedule of Pike Electric Cerporation, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of Pike
Electric, included in Pike Electric’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2008.

1.

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-126902) pertaining to the Pike Holdings, Inc. 2002 Stock
Options A, Pike Holdings, Inc. 2002 Stock Options Plan B, and Pike Electric Corporation 2005 Omnibus
Incentive Compensation Plan,

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-150815) pertaining to the Pike Electric Corporation 2008
Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan,

Registration Statement (Form -8 No. 333-130087) pertaining to the Pike Electric Corporation Employee
Stock Purchase Plan, and

Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-137158) of Pike Electric Corporation.

/sf Ernst & Young LLP

Greensboro, North Carolina
September 4, 2008
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" Exhibit 31.1

MANAGEMENT CERTIFICATION
I, J. Eric Pike, certify that:

. I'have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Pike Electric Corporation;

2. DBased on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or ordit 1o state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which subh statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; )

{

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information inctuded in thigreport, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of lhc}gisimm as
of, and lor, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining (%«;closure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(c) and 15d-15(e)) tor the regis' ant and
have: ’
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and prodedures 1o be

designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the regisirant, igcluding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly duging the period
in which this report is being prepared; ’

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over fl;'lancial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, 1o provide reasonable assurance regarding the feliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accorddnce with
generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presentefl in this
report our conclusions aboul the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluaiion: and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting $hat occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the cade of an
annual report) that has materially atfected, or is rcasonably likely to materially affect, the regi§trant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying ofticer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatidn of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of rcgisuam’sboard of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): :

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal conwol
over financial reporting, which are reasonably likely to adversely atiect the registrant’s abilityfo
record. process. summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a;
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting. :

/s/ J. Eric Pike

Date: September 5, 2008 J. Eric Pike
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
and President
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Exhibit 31.2

MANAGEMENT CERTIFICATION

1, Anthony K. Slater, certify that:

T have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Pike Electric Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
malerial fact necessary ta make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, 10 ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared,

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be desizaned under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

¢} Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered Dy this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting, which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Anthony K. Slater

Date: September 5, 2008 Anthony K. Slater

Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

fiscal year ending June 30, 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hédreof (the
*Report”), we, I. Eric Pike, Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chief Exceutive Officer and Presidest of the
Company, and Anthony K. Slater, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U, $ C. § 1350 as
adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: :;

In connection with the Annual Report of Pike Electric Corporation (the “Company™} on Form IU%K for the

(1) The Report fully complics with the requircments of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Lxg:hanoc Actol
1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly represents, in all material respects, the financiabcondition and
results of operations of the Company. i

s/ 1. Eric Pike

J. Eri¢ Pike
Chairman, Chief Executive Ofticer and President
September 5, 2008

/s/ Anthony K. Slater

Anthony K. Slater
Chief Financial Officer
September S, 2008
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